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CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT
FEHRE

| am pleased to report that despite tough market conditions, the RoadShow
Group (“RoadShow” or the “Group”) recorded a profit after taxation of
HK$108.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (“‘FY2013” or “the
year under review”). Excluding the effect of reversal of impairment loss on
other financial assets of HK$25.6 million, the profit after taxation amounted

to HK$83.0 million, representing a slight increase of 4.4% over the previous
financial year. This figure is testament to the consistently strong performance
of RoadShow'’s innovative integration of its main business lines — namely
BUS-TV, IN-BUS and BUS-BODY. Such levels of consistency were all the more

noteworthy since they were achieved during a year when reduced unit rates
were accompanied by a slight decline in industry adspend.

It is gratifying that strong momentum was also recorded in our provision of
integrated market services to advertisers. Key examples of these services
included events and promotions as well as content and advertising production.
Each area ultimately further reinforced the Group’s mission of providing total
marketing solutions to both existing and potential customers.
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Thanks to our successful diversification strategy over the course of the past
three years and the dedicated efforts of our staff, both our Billboard and
Online platforms made healthy strides forward during the year just ended.

Spanning BUS-TV, IN-BUS and BUS-BODY as well as our online portal,

our uniquely integrated media platform is accelerating Groupwide growth
through securing more long-term contracts. We are continuing to deliver

on this promise by making it much easier for advertisers and agencies to
achieve their measurable marketing targets. We have also further sharpened
our competitive edge in out-of-home (“OOH”) media advertising through the
more highly effective co-management of our bus shelter advertising.

Regarding the recovery of our investment in AdSociety Daye Advertising
Company Limited (AdSociety Daye) in the PRC, the Group has entered
into agreements for selling and transferring its entire 32.7% equity interest
in AdSociety Daye as well as selling and assigning its entire interest in

the shareholder loans together with interest outstanding owing from
AdSociety Daye at a total consideration of the Hong Kong dollar equivalent
of RMB50 million. KMB Resources Limited, holding 73.01% of the issued
share capital of the Company, has given its written approval in respect

of these transactions. RMB20 million has been received by the Group in
connection with the disposal of the loans.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group generated a total
operating revenue of HK$488.2 million. This figure represents a rise of
approximately 10.2% over the previous financial year (FY2012). Profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company in FY2013 was
HK$104.9 million, compared with HK$74.8 million for FY2012. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, profit from operations stood at approximately
HK$98.9 million, an increase of approximately 2.5% over the previous
financial year.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK7.94 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK7.50 cents per share). This
represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current year's operating profit
(2012: 100%).
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PROSPECTS

Uncertainty beyond the control of any one single company still stalks
worldwide markets. Furthermore, tough conditions including soaring cost
structures are likely to negatively impact enterprises like RoadShow for
some time to come. While we anticipate stagnant growth for adspend in
the coming year, our senior management and people will strive hard to
maintain the Group’s competitiveness. At the same time, we will maintain
our successful policy of diversifying our business portfolio as part of our
ongoing healthy expansion.

COMMUNITY

RoadShow has long been a very enthusiastic supporter of good causes
and FY2013 saw us continue to do everything possible to share our good
fortune with disadvantaged members of our community as well as support-
ing various NGOs and charity organisations.

APPRECIATION

The RoadShow Group would never have been able to achieve and sustain
its success without the unstinting support of its staff, clients, suppliers

and shareholders. | know | speak for the rest of the Board in extending my
sincere thanks to every one of you for your valuable contribution to our
success. We all look forward to your continued support throughout the next
12 months and beyond.

In closing, our very special thanks must go to the Audit Committee, chaired
by Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung and comprising Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Professor
Stephen Cheung Yan Leung, Mr Yung Wing Chung and Ms Winnie Ng, for
their painstaking work.

At this point, | would also like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to their
valuable contributions towards my fellow Directors, in particular Managing
Director Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang, for the Group’s impressive progress.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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| am delighted to report that the RoadShow Group (‘RoadShow” or the
“Group”) has succeeded in generating a slight growth in its sustained operating
results and a positive Profit After Tax (“PAT”) for FY2013. Such an encouraging
performance was largely the result of our unique integration of media platforms
plus our provision of highly effective one-stop integrated marketing services for
both advertisers and agencies.

All of our successes during the year just ended were ultimately made possible
by the focused way in which we have implemented the strategic diversification
and integration policies we adopted during the past three years.
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THE GROUP’S INTEGRATED
PORTFOLIO SUCCEEDED IN

DELIVERING REVENUE
GROWTH OF AROUND 10%.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Despite of a sluggish market in terms of total industry adspend, FY2013
has seen the Group’s integrated portfolio succeed in delivering revenue
growth of 10.2% over the corresponding figure in FY2012. Fuelled by
sustained business momentum of BUS-TV, its enlarged portfolio of
Billboard contributed an enhanced level of profits. Notable new additions to
this portfolio during the year included a giant site in Causeway Bay, various
Star Ferry indoor poster panels and other high-visibility units at the toll area
of Route 3 Tunnel. All are ultimately sure to play a major role in securing
RoadShow’s long-term growth.

The Group has also recorded healthy progress and results in its provision
of integrated marketing services such as event management, content and
advertising production. Our activities in each area have succeeded in once
again underlining our commitment to offering a Total Marketing Solutions
under one roof. Still further steps were taken in delivering on this promise
with the launch of our new roadshow.hk online portal in 2013. Many of
those visiting the site were commuters eager to catch up with RoadShow
BUS-TV broadcasts they may have missed as well as the many more types
of unique contents and bloggers. With the portal already well established in
an astonishingly short period of time, its future looks very bright indeed for
nurturing a sizeable online community.

| also have encouraging progress to report about the recovery of our
investment in AdSociety Daye Advertising Company Limited (AdSociety
Daye) in the PRC. On 9 January 2014, AdSociety Advertising Agency
Limited (AdSociety), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into (i) an equity transfer agreement to sell and transfer its entire 32.7%
equity interest in AdSociety Daye to Daye Transmedia Group Co., Ltd., at
the Hong Kong dollar equivalent of RMB30 million; and (ii) a creditor’s rights
transfer agreement and a pre-contract of creditor’s rights transfer to sell
and assign its entire interest in the shareholder loans provided by AdSociety
to and owing from AdSociety Daye inclusive of all outstanding interests to
Explorer Asia Limited at the Hong Kong dollar equivalent of RMB20 million.
KMB Resources Limited, holding 73.01% of the issued share capital of the
Company, has given its written approval in respect of these transactions.
RMB20 million has been received by the Group in connection with the
disposal of the loans.
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While the ongoing worldwide economic uncertainty is beyond the control
of any one enterprise, we are continuing to do our utmost to consolidate
our core competencies. In delivering on this promise, we are not only
expanding our activities in the area of content creation but also online and
in digital disciplines. The primary objective of our activities across these
areas is to achieve additional synergies with conventional media and so
be better able to communicate with both our target audience and the
community as a whole.

In addition to cementing our position as a Total Marketing Solutions
provider, we are endeavoring to secure our status as “An integrated Media
Group For Hong Kong People”. To this end, we will continue to work hard
to support community and volunteer services by channeling resources from
the commercial sector to truly needy Hongkongers. As mentioned in our
report for FY2012, we will also continue to maintain our proven policy of
working hand-in-hand with various strategic partners in order to help bring
about a more harmonious society for all.

Significant drivers behind the RoadShow Group’s strong progress during
FY2013 included the wise guidance of our Chairman and Board of
Directors and the tireless professionalism of our staff. Please join me in
extending our sincere appreciation to each and every one of them.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

RoadShow’s unwavering advocacy of talent and ideas has always mirrored
the way we wholeheartedly support socially meaningful policies and
practices. Our primary objective here is to create value for not only our
audience, but also our staff and across our corporate culture as a whole.
In moving forward, we hereby pledge to redouble our efforts in “helping

the less fortunate”, “protecting the environment” and “re-engineering Hong
Kong’s competitiveness”.

Thank you once more for another solid year for the RoadShow Group!

Alex MO Tik Sang

Managing Director
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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THE ROADSHOW.HK PORTAL

In June 2013, RoadShow once again delivered on its promise of being
Hong Kong’s most integrated out-of-home (“OOH”) online platform with

the launch of its roadshow.hk portal. Featuring hyper-rich video content,
showcasing over 100 must-read bloggers and enabling unprecedented
interaction with local “netizens”, the portal achieved new heights in dynamic
energy and customer engagement.

RoadShow understands that if it is to stay relevant and profitable, traditional
media must be expanded and made ever more challenging. In leveraging
state-of-the-art advances in information technology, online and mobile
platforms provide the seamless multi-faceted capability needed to achieve
this goal.

Used to compliment social media, digital and mobile channels are now
creating extra added value for both consumers and businesses. Best of
all, they do so without disrupting carefully constructed budgets or existing
advertising ecosystems.

The Q2 2014 roll out of our new RoadShow App will further strengthen
our online and mobile platforms. A uniquely functional lifestyle App,

the freshly launched channel will tempt browsers with a wide range of
wining and dining selections including Editor’s choices and celebrities’
recommendations. Its enhanced content will also showcase upbeat
entertainment updates for the fast growing mass of Smartphone users.
As-a result, it is sure to play a major role in helping to engage consumers
across emerging markets.
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BUS-TV

FY2013 saw BUS-TV face challenges. Overall the Group’s sales
performance was moderate at best and was affected by a reduction in the
size of our bus fleet to 3,600 KMB network buses in FY2012.

As agile and responsive as always, we were able to adapt to such changes
quickly and effectively by implementing a number of initiatives designed

to rectify our overall sales approach. To this end, we further enhanced

and strengthened our broadcast syndication and soft implementation
capabilities.

In the coming year, we will continue to fully integrate BUS-TV with other
RoadShow platforms. Our ultimate aim in doing so is to better service
brands and advertisers by achieving greater synergy.

BUS-BODY

The year under review was another satisfactory year for BUS-BODY in spite
of keen competition. Our already strong existing client base with sustained
progress in attracting new partners, especially in the highly lucrative blue-
chip sector has been expanded. The positive response of advertisers and
agencies to our unique integration of BUS-TV, BUS-BODY and IN-BUS via
Theme Bus has proven that BUS-BODY is a highly creative and impactful
platform with which brands can strengthen their appeal amongst targets.
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IN-BUS

The overall momentum of our IN-BUS segment continued to remain stable
during the year under review. Over the course of the year, we implemented
many special measures to ensure we could achieve further growth and
continue to move forward. Specific examples included increasing our
platforms’ attractiveness by unleashing new advertising formats as well as
enhancing creativity and interactivity through more innovative leveraging of
technology.

BUS SHELTERS

This arm of our business has been operated in conjunction with JCDecaux
Cityscape Limited since 2001. The encouraging growth of this division
during the year under review contributed significantly to RoadShow’s
revenue and profits. It also measurably enhanced our market share and
status as probably Hong Kong’s foremost out-of-home (OOH) advertising
specialist.

BILLBOARD

Inaugurated in December 2012, Billboard was an innovative new business
direction for us. The initiative began when we were commissioned to be the
Government Property Agency’s exclusive media representative in handling
outdoor billboards at Hung Hing Road, Causeway Bay. Prominently
situated just before Hong Kong’s continually crowded main Cross Harbour
Tunnel, our prime display here offers unprecedented exposure and impact
for advertisers who wish to reach a vast target audience. We have also

b
J
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entered into a licence agreement with Route 3 (CPS) Company Limited in
December 2012. The resultant arrangements cover the soliciting of various
billboard advertising spaces at Route 3 (CPS) commencing in March 2013.
Besides, in June 2013, we commenced our role as advertising agent for
Star Ferry, covering the outdoor panels of the pier and the ferry.

The acquisition of these locations is a momentous step for RoadShow. By
expanding our operations into the billboard arena, we are not only further
solidifying our leading role in the out-of-home media market, but also
accelerating the total integration of our multi-dimensional platforms.

Apart from generating potentially huge new income streams, this coming
together will also double as an excellent supporting tool with which to
promote the Group’s integrated programs in the future.

The coming year will see us continuing our efforts to expand our Billboard
network and further enhance our market share. We also intend to keep
searching for - and securing - more top quality locations in both the public
and private sectors. In doing so, we will mainly target prime locations we
can use as cut-in points. In the meantime, we also plan to invest still more
resources and manpower into our sustained expansion. Along the way,
we will continue to do our utmost to unearth any new technologies and ad
formats with which we can enhance our ad displays and create maximum
impact across Hong Kong.
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—> OUR STRONGLY INTEGRATED MULTI-MEDIA PLATFORMS ARE
ALSO FULL OF IMPACTFUL PLANNING, PRODUCTION AND EVENT
PROMOTION IDEAS.
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OUR DEDICATED CONTENT TEAM TAILORS BRANDS MANY INNOVATIVE
WAYS TO ENGAGE THEIR TARGETS.
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INTEGRATED MARKETING SERVICES

The year under review also witnessed a phenomenal surge in demand for
our market-leading Integrated Marketing Services. Key customers included
not only advertisers, event management and production specialists, but
also creative development and public relations professionals. Gratifyingly,
this upswing in demand was accompanied by a measurable rise in the
number of integrated campaigns we helped organise for our clients.

As a result, we remain perfectly placed to meet agencies and advertisers’
integrated media and marketing service needs. We are doing so through
not only our multi-media platforms and unique content production, but also
our high-quality event management services. In addition to our reputable
BUS-TV and BUS-BODY platforms, we further extended our coverage to
include Billboard, E-Portal, and Mobile Application Software. Given all the
resources they needed, our content production team also produced many
customised programmes for different clients. We further added to our
already excellent reputation in the area of event management expertise by
organising a variety of product launches, catwalk shows, talent contests,
awards presentation ceremonies and concerts. Such a broad range of
specialisations means we continue to be more than capable when it comes
to creating a multi-media matrix for impactful advertising campaigns that far
exceed partners’ expectations.
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The list of integrated campaigns that RoadShow has launched was a
lengthy one. We were both proud and privileged to have been appointed
as the HKAEE’s Management Consultant for the fourth year running at
“Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence”. Top local insurance
specialist AIA co-ordinated with RoadShow in 2013 for its “Healthy-living -
Let’s Go! Love Your Heart!” fundraising campaign. In addition, RoadShow
joined forces with The Hong Kong Institute of Family Education (HKIFE) to
organise the Territory’s first ever “Hong Kong C.E.O. Parent Election” - the
C.E.Q. in this context standing for “Competent, Effective and Optimistic”.
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.
A CARING,
SHARING SPIRIT

.Il{

—> OUR KEY CSR FOCUS FOR 2013 WAS ENCOURAGING
HONGKONGERS TO vmumrﬁg.-mm_w THE NEEDY.
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— WE ARE ALSO ACTIVE IN GENERATING PUBLIC SUPPORT FOR
SUSTAINABLE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES.
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COMMUNITY

RoadShow (or the Group) has long been applauded for its commitment to
making a meaningful contribution to Hong Kong life. In the year ended 31
December 2013, we continued to deliver on this promise by organising a
diverse range of corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. In addition
to helping the needy, specific examples of initiatives included community
service, environmental protection and promoting people’s wellbeing.

A helping hand for the needy

One of the focuses of RoadShow 2013 CSR is encouraging the public to
join voluntary work. RoadShow therefore co-organised with the Agency for
Volunteer Service for the Fifth Hong Kong Volunteer Award. The award was
designed to stimulate social recognition of, and participation in, voluntary
work and to recognise exemplary community models.

Besides co-organising the Fifth Hong Kong Volunteer Award, RoadShow
has organised “Caring Hearts” Volunteer Activities in 2013 which sought to
encourage people to participate in voluntary work and to help the needy.

In June, we arranged the Happy Gathering at Tuen Ng Festival. The event
was more than just a good-natured gathering that expressed our caring
efforts on behalf of the local communities that sustain our business. It was
a heart-warming day out with most visible results being the smiling faces
of the 50 old folks who were delighted by the wonderful entertainment and
gifts.

In July, we hosted the Children’s Fun & Inclusion Day. In all, over 200
children from poorer families came along to The Endeavourers’ Leung Lee
Sau Yu Memorial Primary School and enjoyed a wonderfully sun-soaked
day of fun.

In August, we hosted the All Fun Day in Ngong Ping 360. Over 40 physically
challenged people enjoyed a day out exploring the park’s many attractions
plus a wonderful lunch at Po Lin Monastery.

The Garlic-Honey Making Session for the Elderly in September showed our
love towards the elderly. Volunteers helped the seniors make healthy sweet
treats. Overflowing with lots of love, each bottle of honey came with a little
card on which volunteers wrote their blessings for their elderly friends.

The Fun Day for Blind Golfers was another “Caring Hearts” Volunteer activity
that took place in September 2013. The day attracted a huge turnout of
over 160. Each volunteer subsequently helped a blind golfer with his or her
drives and putts.
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Giving back to the community

Each year, we also offer deserving causes generous tranches of airtime
to publicise themselves and their fundraising activities on our BUS-TV
broadcasts. In FY2013, some 123 NGOs benefited from this free,
high-profile exposure.

To encourage more responsible pet ownership, we even joined forces with
the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department, and non-profit
making animal welfare organisations to co-host animal adoption “Pets are
Family Too” days.

Caring for the environment

RoadShow has long been doing everything possible to deliver on its
commitment to promote environmental conservation. We are proud

to continue delivering on this promise by producing and broadcasting
environmental protection messages via our flagship programme “Beyond
16°C” and also organising “ECO Star Awards 2013” and “Project PC
Needy Reboot”.

Following the success of Part | to Part lIl of “Beyond 16°C”, we launched
“16°C Count Down” in 2013 to arouse public attention to the importance of
protecting our environment.

RoadShow has conducted the “ECO Star Awards 2013” to encourage
the public to generate support for sustainable environmental protection
development. This was the second year for RoadShow to launch this
Award. We believe that this Award Scheme plays a significant role

in recognising individuals who have made important contributions to
environmental protection.

Launched in conjunction with Caritas-HK Computer Workshop and
supported by the Environmental Protection Department, the “Project PC
Needy Reboot” is another campaign that we kicked off in December 2013
to encourage Hongkongers to donate their old computers so they can be
refurbished and then shared with disadvantaged members of our society.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRHE

For The Year Ended 31 December
BEt+-A=1t—HLEE

2013 2012
Full Year Results (HK$’000)
EFEXRECEBET )
Turnover & %% 462,002 421,154
EBITDA R&tFI2 - 1B - TEREHAN BT 135,755 116,854
Operating profit 484 £ 7| 98,882 96,490
Net profit 4 7] 108,622 79,499
Basic earnings per share (HK Cents) &R E AN 2 F) (G 11l) 10.51 7.50
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (HK$’000)
REEEAERBEB(EBTT)
Cash and cash equivalents & NIE&ZEY) 359,066 409,791
Total assets &E# (A 784,509 766,483
Total liabilities & &4 %8 100,057 110,369
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders %5 [ (h # z5 4258 674,747 646,178
Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)
REREHBE (BT )
Cash generated from operations 7 548 & E BRI IR & 25,627 51,582
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,389 (4,396)
ReRkBReEEYEM CAD)FE
Financial Ratios
Bt =
Current ratio R ELt, % 7.12 5.71
EBITDA margin R&HHIE ~ FI8 - T8 REHATH A F| = 27.8% 26.4%
Net profit margin JF5;E = 22.2% 17.9%
Debt-to-equity ratio B EE AL = 0% 0%
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Results

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$488.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 10.2% over the previous year. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$104.9 million in 2013, compared
with HK$74.8 million in 2012. For the year ended 31 December 2013,
profit from operations was approximately HK$98.9 million

(2012: HK$96.5 million), representing an increase of approximately
2.5%. The Group continues to maintain a strong financial position with
bank deposits and cash of HK$359.1 million as at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$409.8 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$488.2 million, of which HK$462.0 million was
from media sales services and HK$26.2 million was from other revenue
and other net income. Revenue from media sales services generated
from the Hong Kong and the Mainland China operations accounted
for approximately 99.9% and 0.1% of the Group’s total turnover
respectively. Revenue generated from the media sales services of

the Hong Kong operations was HK$461.4 million in 2013 compared
with HK$417.0 million in 2012, representing a 10.6% increase mainly
resulting from the growth in our core business, while that generated
from our Mainland China operations was HK$0.6 million in 2013
compared with HK$4.2 million in 2012.

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses increased by HK$42.6 million, from
HK$346.7 million in 2012 to HK$389.3 million in 2013 as a result of
the growth of our business.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK7.94 cents per share
(2012: HK7.50 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December 2013.
This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current year’s operating
profit.
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Cash Flow

In 2013, the cash generated from the operations of the Group

was HK$25.6 million (2012: HK$51.6 million). Payment for capital
expenditure in 2013 amounted to HK$12.9 million (2012: HK$8.8
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is set out on pages 91 to 92 of this
Annual Report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank deposits and cash amounted
to HK$359.1 million (2012: HK$409.8 million), denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. Apart from providing working
capital to support its media sales, the Group maintains a strong cash
position to meet the potential needs for business expansion and
development.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group did not have any

bank borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank
borrowings to the total share capital and reserves of the Group was 0%
at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had stand-by banking
facilities totalling HK$25.0 million.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets of HK$611.3
million (2012: HK$519.5 million) and total assets of HK$784.5 million
(2012: HK$766.5 million).

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2013, bank deposits of HK$61.4 million

(2012: HK$60.2 million) were pledged mainly to secure certain bank
guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Company to fellow
subsidiaries regarding their due performance and payment under
certain licence agreements between the subsidiaries of the Company
and the fellow subsidiaries.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During the
year, there was no material fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars and of Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposure in 2013. At
31 December 2013 and 2012, the unutilised amount of proceeds from
the Global Offering and the exercise of an over-allotment option by the
underwriters on 18 July 2001 were placed into bank deposits.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2013 amounted
to HK$11.2 million (2012: HK$6.7 million). The breakdown of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in note 13 to the financial statements
on page 123 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding and not provided for in the financial
statements of the Group at 31 December 2013 amounted to HK$111.0
million (2012: HK$111.0 million), which is mainly for the upgrade of

the existing MMOB system for the BUS-TV advertising business. The
commitments are to be financed by bank borrowings and/or internal
resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

Accounting Standards and Policies

The financial statements set out on pages 86 to 153 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards

and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2013, the Group had 161 full-time employees in Hong
Kong and 2 full-time employees in Mainland China.

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration

and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement of
business objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales team
based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The Group has
adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by
the relevant local governments for its employees in Mainland China.

Connected Transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out below.

i) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected
parties in 2009 as set out below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transactions listed below were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 17 September 2009. The transactions and
the respective annual caps were approved at the special general
meeting by the independent shareholders on 9 October 2009.
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i) Name of Nature of transactions HK$’000 Cap amount
connected parties XEME T T approved by
BEALTER the independent

shareholders
KBS RRR
HEAEN SR LR
HK$’000
BT T

1) The Kowloon Motor Bus Licence fee payable by RoadShow Media 12,167 57,000
Company (1933) Limited Limited (“RoadShow Media”) (Note 2) to
(“KMB”) (Note 1) KMB in relat|onl t.o. the grantl of a Ilcehoe

- _ by KMB for soliciting advertising business
EL(—N==) in respect of the interior panels of the bus
BRARTAED body of the KMB buses
(fHaE1)
RoadShow Media Limited ([ RoadShow
Medial) (fzE2) St BEREBENEBELHERE
WEE S #ETTEEE BN ETERNAE XN
HRFET B

2) KMB Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited 60,500 103,000

HE (“Bus Power”) (Note 3) to KMB in relation

to the grant of a licence by KMB for the

exclusive right to market, display and
maintain advertisements at the exterior
panels of the bodies of the KMB buses

Bus Power Limited ([ Bus Power ) (F{5E3) 5t
NEREBEEHEE  BREESESNEFING

BEEUNBREFFERNNENNSHE

Notes:

1.
2.
3.

KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”).
RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Bus Power is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

B

1.

NEREBEKEREMRAA(EHE]) MAEES
=G

RoadShow Media BAR B HEEE2EWIE A
ET °

Bus Power BA R RIMEZEE2EMB AR °
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ii) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected
parties in 2008 as set out below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transactions listed below were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 28 November 2008 and were approved at
the special general meeting by the independent shareholders on
15 December 2008.

The following transactions have been extended for the period
from 1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the
extended transactions and the respective proposed annual caps
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated

3 July 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 30 July
2012. The annual caps in respect of the royalty fees payable,
Shortfall receivable, the management fees payable and the sales
rebate payable are subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions and the respective
proposed annual caps were approved at the special general
meeting by the independent shareholders on 15 August 2012.
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ii) Name of Nature of transactions HK$’000 Cap amount
connected parties XEHME SEME T T approved by
BHEALTER the independent

shareholders
BB PR
HEEN SRR LR
HK$’000
BT T

3) KMB Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited 20,169 23,000

e (“Bus Focus”) (Note 4) to KMB in connection
with the provision of media sales services
for transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus Limited ( [Bus Focus| ) (Hf3£4)
RANBREENTEERHEETIRBEBHER
BRANBXZNHENE

4) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited Management fee payable by Bus Focus to 22,614 26,500
(“JCDecaux Cityscape”) JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
(Note 5) provision of media sales services for transit
EaRHEERA vehicle shelters owned by KMB
(EaREE] ) (F45E5)

Bus Focus ?ﬁﬁﬂE?ﬁﬁ%EEi%@i%?&ﬁ
BHERBEERESEEINNEERSE
5) JCDecaux Cityscape Sales rebate payable by Bus Focus to — 7,500

EaRE JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
provision of media sales services for transit
vehicle shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus ?ﬁﬁ:ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ’\]@@E%ﬁ@?ﬁﬁi\

HRHERB AN RENHHEERN
6) JCDecaux Cityscape Shortfall of guarantee rental receivable by — 20,000

EEaRY Bus Focus in connection with the provision
of media sales services for transit vehicle
shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus BB HAMNFESHIZE =RHEE

BHERBHNEKRBHEHN T 2HE
Notes: BisE
4. Bus Focus is an indirect 80%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct 4. Bus FocusRAREIREERC0%EDNITELR

40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL”). IPL is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited (“JCDecaux CHK”).

5. JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.

BERERA0%ERE

7]+ If B Almmense Prestige Limited ( [IPL] )
g6 XA © IPLAJCDecaux
Cityscape Hong Kong Limited ( [JCDecaux
CHK] ) W2 EMEAR

5. =R AJCDecaux CHKBIZ A KT E A A
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iii) The Group entered into the transaction with the connected party
in 2007 as set out below. The transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction which is subject to reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transaction
listed below were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
21 November 2007 and were approved at the special general
meeting by the independent shareholders on 10 December 2007.
The details of the annual caps in respect of the licence fee and
service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following
transaction for the three years ended 31 December 2010, 2011
and 2012 were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 17
September 2009 and were approved at the special general meeting

by the independent shareholders on 9 October 2009.

The following transaction has been extended for the period from
1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended
transaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2012 and the
circular of the Company dated 18 April 2012. The transaction
and the proposed annual caps in respect of the licence fee

and service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the
following transaction for the five years ending 31 December 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 were approved by the independent

shareholders on 14 May 2012.

i)

REER ST HFREFALTET TR
X5 RELFTRABV4AE  ZR 5
BRFERERS  WALTHK - Aff
RBIEEAAENBRE - THRHHFS
ERARRR-_ZEZ+E+—A=+—H
HEmBRAEE TR _ETLF+=
A+TERBRRERAS FEB R
# ° RoadShow Mediast F3|HZE—F
—ZEF . —ET——FR-FT—-F+=A
=t —ALFEAINOFTERREE
MEELFROFBERRRARRZZEN
FAA+EBFIENBRANERE - TR
ZTZNF+ANABRBRENRE LEB
SRR BEAE o

Nt -_2——F/\A—HILEE=Z
—E—+FRNA=ZTH ERXHEIAH
EEFELRMFEERARRRE

—ZF=ATABHENASE  UERAR
AIRZE—ZFEA+NBFHEHBAA
W - %R 5 K% RoadShow Media it T
NEE-Z—ZF - _FT—NF. . _F

—RF ZE-RFEERZE—+tF+=A
=t ALREFENRHBEZNOES
BELRRBEENREZFELRERZZE—=
FRATMBEBIREAA -

iii) Name of Nature of transaction HK$°000 Cap amount
connected party REME SEME T T approved by
BREALTERE the independent

shareholders
KB IRR
HEAENERE LR
HK$’000
BT T

7) KMB Licence fee, service charges and rental 25,506 44,000
he expenses payable by RoadShow Media

to KMB in connection with the granting of
an exclusive licence to conduct BUS-TV
Advertising on KMB'’s transit vehicles fitted

with the MMOB broadcasting system

RoadShow Media BtERBRIFTELER R
ZIREERRGNNERESH ETELER
BEEBBAANNBINOSTE RSB LES
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iv) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected party

in 2012 and 2013 as set out below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting
and announcement requirements, but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transactions listed below
and the respective proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 September 2012 and 27
September 2013 respectively.

iv)

AEBER-ZE——FR-FT-=FHEE
ATEITTHRR S o RIE ETARAIEE 14A
- RERIENFERERS  WAEE
THHBERAGRE - A EREETEL
WREBAERRE - TR 5 RBEEZRF
ELEROFBESINARAR =T —=
FAA+-—BR-Z—Z=ZFALA-1++tAH
FBHAHNESE -

iv) Name of Nature of transactions HK$’000 Cap amount
connected parties TEME BT T SE LR
BEALBRE S —

BT

8) KMB Rental and other charges and expenses 1,009 1,150

he payable by Bus Power to KMB in connection
with the leasing of the fifth floor, 9 Po Lun
Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Bus Power HEEBNEZHXAZEHREIR
TEAMNEXMEE REMERRFX

9) KMB Rental and other charges and expenses 1,942 1,980

he payable by RoadShow Media to KMB in

connection with the leasing of the sixth floor,
9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

RoadShow Media BEEEENEHAER
HONEAMNEX N EE R EMER KX

Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (i), (iii) and
(iv) above, which were entered into by the Group, are: HER

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on o HAMBEBERE . A
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

P

B IFITE

FE)BVRIREI L+ ]

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

20135

FEsEMLRG0 - G-
(V) BAEBEMETNFERERS  UHER

(iii) &

° MAKHEABER—REHBEFITL
B REEGETIIETBERRETELE
—EABBYE=ERHEGRERBRM

GHRBATARR
HarRIREHEBTS -

Vi

BRAUBIER AR AR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
A 75 o R

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions set
out above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group has utilised approximately HK$446.7 million for
the development of, and the purchase of equipment for use in, the
BUS-TV and other advertising business and for the acquisition of
complementary businesses in Mainland China. The balance of the
proceeds, which has not been utilised, has been deposited with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed strong emphasis on maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and believes good corporate
governance provides a solid and sound framework to assist the
Directors in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities to the Group. The
Group’s standards of corporate governance ensure that the Group’s
corporate decision-making process, internal controls, disclosure of
information and communication with shareholders is conducted in
accordance with sound management practices and in full compliance
with the regulatory standards. The Corporate Governance Report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out on pages
56 to 76 of this Annual Report.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAESBN

Directors =%

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
BREEBE LT AKFEHL
Chairman /&

Aged 70, Dr Chan has been a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company since 15 January 2001. He is an Independent Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”). He
previously served as Managing Director of TIH and as Managing Director and later
Senior Executive Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited
(*KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company Limited. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited
and Swire Properties Limited. Dr Chan held many positions in the Hong Kong Civil
Service from 1964 to 1978 and from 1980 to 1993, the key ones of which included
Private Secretary to the Governor, Deputy Secretary (General Duties), Director of
Information Services, Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for Trade and Industry
and Secretary for Education and Manpower. Dr Chan also served as Executive
Director and General Manager of Sun Hung Kai Finance Company Limited from
1978 to 1980. He was Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club from 2006 to
2010. Dr Chan is Chairman of the Court of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, a Director of the Community Chest, a member of the Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee and Chairman and Non-executive Director of Hong
Kong News-Expo Limited.

YUNG Wing Chung
BIKE

Deputy Chairman 2= /&

Aged 67. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November
2008. He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also
serves as an Alternate Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Wing Tai
Properties Limited, Director of YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation
Centre Limited, River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company
Limited and Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited. Mr Yung was
a Non-Executive Director of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
a Non-Executive Director of Wing Tai Properties Limited and an Alternate
Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Transport International Holdings
Limited. Prior to his joining Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung
had many years of working experience with a U.S. Bank in various managerial
positions in Hong Kong and the United States.

GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD
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Winnie NG
hEEHs

Founder and Deputy Chairman 8li#ff A % 2IEE
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKIoD

Aged 50. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been Director since
its inception. She is also a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited,
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, and Long Win Bus Company
Limited. Ms Ng has received numerous awards and recognition. In 2010, she was
named a Woman of Excellence and was also selected as one of 60 Meritorious
Chinese Entrepreneurs with Achievement and National Contribution. In previous
years, she won the Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was
named one of China’s 100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason Fellow
of Harvard University, and was the Caring Heart Award recipient. She founded and
spearheaded listing of this multi-media company, which business model has been
adopted by many companies in HK, China and over the world.

Active in public service, she serves on a number of public and community boards.
She is Member of Hospital Authority, Member of HK Tourism Board, Court Member
of the Polytechnic University, Director of Vocational Training Council, Council
Member of Better HK Foundation, Vice Chairperson and Director of Friends of
She holds an MBA from

University of Chicago and an MPA from Harvard University. She is a Fellow of the

Bauhinia, PR Committee Member of Community Chest.

Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Alex MO Tik Sang
FHE4E

Managing Director %= $ /2458
FHKIoD

Aged 48. Mr Mo has been a Director of the Company since 15 April 2008. He has
over two decade’s specialist experience in advertising, marketing and media. During
the last eighteen years, Mr Mo has occupied several key management roles, building
up integrated experience in multiple disciplines across the communications industry.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr Mo held a senior position in a leading media group
for Greater China. Mr Mo is a Director of Agency for Volunteer Service (AVS) and a
member of Fundraising & Promotion Committee of AVS.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013
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Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
R ELAEH LT

Aged 66. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. A
graduate of the University of Hong Kong, Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate degree
in Professional Studies from Middlesex University, UK. She is the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Hong Kong
Management Association and The British Computer Society, Honorary Fellow of
the Hong Kong Association for Computer Education and Chartered Information
Technology Professional. Dr Tsui is holder of Professional Diploma on Corporate
Governance and Directorship. A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a Member of the
Communications Authority and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)
and Deputy Chairman of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited.
She was formerly a Wan Chai District Councillor, a Councillor of Urban Council and
Provisional Urban Council and a member of Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding
Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. She is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Polytec Asset Holdings Limited (0208). She was selected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons in Hong Kong 1981 and awarded IT Achiever of
the Year 1992, Member of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1997,
Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and the Ken Goulding Award for the most outstanding
professional doctorate of Middlesex University 2007.

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREBLATHL

S

Aged 60. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September
2004. He is the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and an Independent Non-executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited,
Long Win Bus Company Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited,
Hang Seng Bank Limited and China Resources Enterprise, Limited. Dr Li was
an Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
and Meadbville Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange until
its withdrawal status on 19 April 2010). Dr Li is a member of the 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman of its
Public Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Independent Non-Executive Director B EMITE S
BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKMA, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD
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RICREEK

BBS, JP, FHKIoD

e

Aged 54. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19
January 2009. He is the President and Chair Professor of Public Policy at
the Hong Kong Institute of Education. He also holds Advisory and Adjunct
Professorships at Fudan University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University
respectively. He obtained a BSc from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
PhD in Statistics from Universite de Paris VI, and PhD in Finance from the
University of Strathclyde.

He has served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its
examination of the Hong Kong Banking sector. He was Chairman of Core
Group on Corporate Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation Council
and was responsible for drafting the PECC’s guidelines on good corporate
governance practice for Asia-Pacific economies. He has provided consultancy
services to the Asian Development Bank, United Nations ESCAP, Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial Services Bureau, Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Social Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Development Fund Task Force, the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic
Cooperation (HKCPEC), Nursing and Midwifery Sub-Group of the Steering
Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and
Professional Development and the Supervisory Committee of the Asian Bond
Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
He serves on the Commission on Poverty, Exchange Fund Advisory Committee
(EFAC), Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee (FISC) of EFAC, Governance
Sub-Committee (GSC) of EFAC, Products Advisory Committee of Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC) and Steering Committee on Strategic Review
on Healthcare Manpower Planning and Professional Development. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2009, and was appointed as Justice of
the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung was Chairman of Consultation Panel of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority from 2009 to 2013 and Advisory Committee on
Enhancing Self-Reliance Through District Partnership Programme (ESR) from
2006 to 2012; and Member of Minimum Wage Commission from 2011 to
2013, Commission on Strategic Development from 2007 to 2012, Independent
Police Complaints Council (IPCC) from 2009 to 2012, Operations Review
Committee and Witness Protection Review Board of Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) from 2008 to 2013. He also served as an Ex-officio
Member and a Non-official Member of Social Enterprise Advisory Committee
from 2010 to 2012 and from 2012 to 2013 respectively. Professor Cheung
was a part-time member of advisory board of the Central Policy Unit of the
HKSAR Government.
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Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
BEPEBTATHL

SBS, OBE, JP, FHKIoD

Aged 67, Dr Yeung has been a Director of the Company since 31 December
2012. He has been the managing director of The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited
(“Cross Harbour”) (Stock Code: 0032) since 1 August 2001 and he also holds
directorships in certain other members of the Cross Harbour group. Dr Yeung
holds a doctoral degree in management. Prior to joining Cross Harbour, he had
held various key management positions in the Government of Hong Kong, where
he last served as the Deputy Director of Immigration; and in the private sector,
where he last worked as the chief executive of a large trading consortium. Dr
Yeung is a member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee, the CUHK
Advisory Group on Undergraduate Studies in Business, CPCE Advisory Committee
of PolyU and the HKU SPACE Foundation Steering Committee.

MAK Chun Keung
BiRo@
Non-Executive Director 3E1TESE

Aged 73. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001.
He joined The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (‘KMB”) in 1994,
appointed Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February 2006. He was
Director of KMB’s first two joint ventures to operate public bus services in People’s
Republic of China. Mr Mak has over twenty years of experience in international
banking and finance, and has held senior executive positions in foreign and local
banking institutions throughout his career.

Independent Non-Executive Director B FFHTEF
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John Anthony MILLER

HER

Non-Executive Director JEEITESE
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoD

Aged 63. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March
2008. Mr Miller retired from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent
Representative of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China
to the World Trade Organization in Geneva. Key positions held over a
career spanning 35 years prior to Mr Miller’s retirement include Permanent
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of
Housing and Chief Executive of the Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-
General of Trade 1993-1996, Director of Marine 1991-1993, Information
Coordinator in the Chief Secretary’s Office 1989-1991 and Private Secretary
to the Governor 1979-1982. Mr Miller is a non-executive director of
Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited and SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, and is
chairman of Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, a partly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. Mr Miller was a non-executive
director of SUNeVision Holdings Limited. Mr Miller holds an MPA degree
from Harvard University and a BA degree from London University.

Edmond HO Tat Man
(CIE='S

Non-Executive Director JE#7TESE
MA(Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

Aged 52. Mr Ho has been a Director of the Company since 13 October 2008.
Mr Ho has been a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”)
and of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (‘KMB”) and Long
Win Bus Company Limited (“LWB”), both wholly-owned subsidiaries of TIH,
since 1 January 2001. Mr Ho joined KMB in September 1998 and served as
Finance and Administration Director from January 1999 to April 2003. He was
promoted to Deputy Managing Director of TIH, KMB and LWB with effect
from 10 January 2002. He has been appointed Managing Director of KMB
and LWB since 1 January 2007 and Managing Director of TIH with effect from
8 April 2008. Positions previously held by him included Investment Director of
a merchant bank and executive director of a number of transport infrastructure
management and investment companies in Hong Kong and on the Mainland
of China. Mr Ho was formerly also a director of four Sino-foreign joint venture
companies of an international leading soft drink brand. Mr. Ho is currently a
Director of the Business Environment Council and a member of the General
Committee of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong. Mr Ho holds a
Master’s degree in engineering from Cambridge University and an MBA degree
from The University of Hong Kong.
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Board of Directors E5 &

Name Position held in the Group Date of appointment
e AR B RB A ZEBH
%éo%h?gcii@i%hi Chak Chairman 15 January 2001

BB ATE e —FT-4—A+HA
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
hfEgZ+ BlF/E —ZEZE-F—A+hA
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008
gﬁgggiwgﬁggsw Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001
TR AT BUNPITES “TT-FmA—H

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FRE[BLATF4T

GBS, OBE, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIIERITES

16 September 2004
—ZEEWFNA+NH

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

RERFBEAFHL
BBS, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIUFATES

19 January 2009
—2ENF-A+AA

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung

Independent Non-Executive Director

31 December 2012

BRPE LTt T T
R e BUHRTES ==& t=A=t-R
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director 15 April 2008
EHESESE ERpKE —EENFWOA+TEA
Mr MAK Chun Keung Non-Executive Director 23 May 2001

ERE 4 EHMITES T —FHAZ+=H
o MILLER Non-Executive Director 20 March 2008

IS SRTEE —EE\F=A=+A

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
fAlE XA

Non-Executive Director

FRTES

13 October 2008
—TT)\F+A+=A

Senior Management SREEAES

Name Position held in the Group Year joined the Group
®H RS BEER B AR EE 2 F45

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director April 2008
EHESSE ERpKE —ZEZNFHA

Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Operating Officer September 2008
[EIm Ak SE BB —EZNFNIA

Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary  February 2007

X gLt S EHGR A BIWE —EEF_A

Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun
BmRIREE

General Manager, Marketing & Sales
(Greater China)
M REEBIEIE (KPEME)

October 2010
—ZET-ZTF+A

Ms Ada LO Ching
EFX L

Operations & Planning Director
EENRIEE

October 2000
“ETEFA
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ROADSHOW’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) have placed strong emphasis on maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and believe that good corporate governance
provides a solid and sound framework to assist the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to

the Group and its shareholders. The Board also believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to protect the interest
of our shareholders and to disseminate the investor’s confidence.

In November 2004, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”) issued the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices and Corporate Governance Report (the “Stock Exchange

Code”), which took effect for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2005. The Stock Exchange Code sets out principles
of good corporate governance and two levels of recommendations,

namely:

e Code Provisions (listed companies are expected to comply with all
these provisions or to give considered reasons for any deviation); and

e Recommended Best Practices (listed companies are encouraged
to comply with these recommendations or to give reasons for any
deviation).

On 14 March 2005, the Board established the “RoadShow Code on
Corporate Governance” (the “RoadShow Code”) and the Company
has implemented the RoadShow Code since then. On 8 March
2006, the Board approved and adopted a number of new sections
of the RoadShow Code which, among other things, rectified the

two deviations from the code provisions in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as reported in the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2005. The RoadShow Code was further updated in March
2009 in accordance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which
had become effective from 1 January 2009.

Amendments to the Stock Exchange Code were announced in October
2011. The revised Appendix 14, Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the revised Stock Exchange Code) had
become effective on 1 April 2012.

The Stock Exchange allows issuers to devise their own codes on
corporate governance practices on such terms as they may consider
appropriate, provided reasons are given for any deviation from the
Stock Exchange Code or the revised Stock Exchange Code. The
RoadShow Code was most recently updated in March 2012 to reflect
the new requirements under the revised Stock Exchange Code.
Shareholders may obtain a hard copy from the Company Secretary on
request at any time.
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Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

The Company has fully complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2013 with all applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Overall Accountability

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are individually and
collectively accountable to the shareholders for the success and
sustainable development of the Company. The Board provides
direction and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-day business
operations are delegated to the Managing Director and the senior
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders and in
discharging its corporate accountability, every Director is required to
pursue excellence in the interests of the shareholders and fulfill his or
her fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills, care and
diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board Composition

The Board is composed of eleven Directors as at 31 December 2013,
four of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).

As at 31 December 2013, INEDs constitute more than one-third of
the Board. These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial
experience to the Board, which contributes to the effective direction
of the Group. One of these INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each INED a written confirmation of
his or her independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs are
independent.

Details of all Directors, including the Chairman, Managing Director
(“MD”), Executive Director, Non-Exective Directors (“NEDs”) and INEDs
are set out on pages 49 to 54 of this Annual Report. The relationships
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships) among members of the Board are also disclosed. There is
no such relationship between the Chairman and the MD.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 14 August 2013. The Company recognised and
embraced the benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality
of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered based
on a range of perspectives including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The types of decisions that are taken by
the Board include those relating to:

e the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

e the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and
financial performance;

e overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers,
employees and the community; and

e the assessment and management of risk to which the Group is
exposed.

Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Managing Director or the officer in charge who is required to report
back to the Board.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability insurances
for its Directors and officers during the year.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and activities

of each board committee during the year are set out on pages 62
to 68 of this Annual Report.
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Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for Directors
to seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expense. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice in 2013. Four Board
meetings were held during 2013 and the average attendance rate of
Directors was 100% (2012: 100%). As at the date of this report, the
Chairman of the Company has held a meeting with the NEDs (including
the INEDs) without the presence of the executive director.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in 2013 is
set out below:

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2013

BESRN-_Z--FETNESEZRNHERER

ExEERREERR
EZeNFATHEREE  UBHAREN
BERMMEERPBRR - MEERTER
EENARFEASEXBNIEZY 7
BRARRARAD - ARANREHTERBARAT
HEREFSIEUEXREANSHETES
BENE@EREF R-T—=F TEINE
ERREMBUEXRER - ARAR T —=
FROTHREFTEES - MESNTHLE
ER/100% (ZFB—ZF : 100%) ° RARE
A ARRIEFEFNTES (BREBUF
WITER) BI17-REF MPTEFLE
HE -

BEER T =FREINEFTSSALERL
BEFINT

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
FifE/ BITEE Aot
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
B EHMITESE !
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
. . 4/4 100%
RERIEL 6
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
RV 4/4 100%
TREGHL o
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
_ - 4/4 100%
IR °
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
o5 . 4/4 100%
BEPiELT °
Non-Executive Directors:
FPITES !
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman) 4/4 100%
PRIEEE T (EE) °
Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman) 4/4 100%
hEGR LT (BFE) °
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman) o
Bk (B ) 4/ 100%
Mr MAK Chun Keung
4/4 100%
ERAR %L °
Mr John Anthony MILLER
s 4/4 100%
HEBEE °
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
v 4/4 100%
Al S A o
Executive Director:
HITESE
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
; 4/4 1009
b g "
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Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of

new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board for decision
with reference to criteria that include professional knowledge and
industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
the time commitments of the candidates. Thereafter, all Directors are
subject to re-election by the shareholders at the general meetings in
their first year of appointment.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years.

Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility,
the posts of the Chairman and the MD are held separately by Dr John
Chan Cho Chak and Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang respectively. The Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Board is functioning properly with
good corporate governance practices and procedures, whilst the

MD is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses in a manner
consistent with the Group’s standards and in accordance with specific
plans, instructions or directions of the Board.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
Programme

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of

the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his or her
responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors
are provided with quarterly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development

to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the year, the Company has also organised one briefing session
conducted by a professional firm for the Directors. The briefing session
covered topic on risk and the boardroom.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2013 is as follows:

BEESERENTH  EERHE_T—=
Fr_ A=+ BLEEEEZNEIREN
T

Type of continuous professional
development programmes
BFEERERTEED

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
RRREL

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREBL

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICRHE

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
BRETEL

Non-Executive Directors:

FHITES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)
PRIQZM T ()

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)
hESZ T (BER)

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)
BKEBRE(FERE)

Mr MAK Chun Keung
BIRAEE

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HEBEE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
fAE R E

Executive Director:

HITES :

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
ALY

Notes:

A. Attending briefing session held by the Company

B. Reading materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing

Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements provided by the Company

C. Attending briefing session(s) held by other listed companies or other professional

institutions

B
A REARFDETOENR

B. MEAARARMAMLIRAREMERE
RETER AN RE AR
C. HREEMLTARREMCEXRERTOENE
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. She advises the Board on governance
matters and facilities the induction and professional development of
Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. Although the Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and Managing Director, all Directors may

call upon her for advice and assistance at any time in respect to their
duties and the effective operation of the Board and Board Committees.
The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship
between the Company and its shareholders, including assisting the
Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has appointed various Board Committees. The majority of the
members of the Board Committees are either INEDs or NEDs. Each of
the committees has its specific terms of reference.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001. The
Committee currently comprises three NEDs and an ED.

The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year and on
an ad hoc basis if necessary to review business operations, financial

operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These projects include
major acquisitions, investments and their funding requirements.
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During 2013, the Executive Committee held four meetings. The
attendance record of the members of the Executive Committee in
2013 is summarised below:

RIZE—=F THZEGRITTHNREHE -
THZEEeREN - E—ZFNHEDst
Ul

Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2013

ERER-F-ZHFETNTHRZEESERNHERR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
R/ BiTE= Botk
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES
Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman) 4/a 100%
B BB S () ’
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman) 4/a 100%
ARt (2IER) ’
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
- 4/4 100%
XL °
Executive Director:
HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
. 4/4 1009
Eihie sk / 00%
Audit Committee ERESSE
The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The EREEOR -_EE—ENA+—BRKT - &
Committee currently comprises three INEDs and two NEDs. The MD is Ee BN BB NI EERMEIESNT
required to attend each Audit Committee meeting as requested by the EEAK  cEELCHEEIEES R BHEKX
members of the Committee. After each meeting, the Audit Committee LEGAEREReeE - BREReNER

reports to the Board on significant issues. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the members of the Audit Committee are Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung
(chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Professor Stephen Cheung Yan
Leung, Ms Winnie Ng and Mr Yung Wing Chung.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices, to
improve the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial and
other reports, and to strengthen the system of internal control, risk
management and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

During 2013, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following documents and matters in the
meetings:

e the Company’s Report of the Directors, Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and 2012 Annual Report, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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the Company’s Interim Financial Report for the six months ended
30 June 2013 and Interim Report 2013, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

the audit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2013, including the extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

the results of the external audits;

the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review
for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and of the audit for the
year ended 31 December 2013, and terms of engagement of the
External Auditors for approval by the Board;

the results of the 2012 and 2013 internal audits performed
by an outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal
Auditors”);

the proposed internal audit plan for financial year 2013 of the
Internal Auditors including the extent of co-ordination between
the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors;

the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group,
including (a) BUS-TV Advertising business - (i) Programming and
production and (ii) Operation and contract compliance;

(b) BUS-BODY and IN-BUS Advertising businesses — Operation
and contract compliance; (c) Web portal — (i) Content
development and (ii) Sales and marketing; (d) Follow-up of prior
year’s Internal Auditors’ findings; (e) Follow up of compliance to
updated corporate governance requirement; and (f) Control Self
Assessment; and

the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The audit committee Chairman and other committee members also
meet in separate private session with the external auditor once during
the year.
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The attendance record of the members of the Audit Committee in
2013 is summarised below:
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Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2013

ERER-E-ZHFETHNERZESERNEERER

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
iR/ Bi1E= Bot
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
B EHMITES !
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman)
V. X 3/3 100%
FRE[L(EE)
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 3/3 100%
BRBEL ’
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
_ - 3/3 100%
RICREIX
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES !
Ms Winnie NG 3/3 100%
mEig L+ ’
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 3/3 100%
AKEBREE ’

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March
2004. The Committee currently comprises two INEDs and a NED. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Remuneration
Committee are Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui (chairman), Mr Yung Wing
Chung and Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate
a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the
strategic objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the
Remuneration Committee formulates policies on and reviews the
remuneration of the Company’s Directors and senior management.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

no individual should determine his or her own remuneration
package;

remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with
whom the Company competes for human resources;

the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages
that attract and retain executives needed to run the Group
successfully and motivate executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst it should avoid paying an excessive
amount for such purposes;

remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of work;
and

remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to
improve their individual performance.

In 2013, the Remuneration Committee:

reviewed and assessed criteria for awarding performance related
bonuses to Directors, having regard to the Group’s business
objectives and targets;

reviewed the principal elements of the remuneration packages of
senior management; and

reviewed the Directors’ fees.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2013. The
attendance record of the members of the Remuneration Committee in
2013 is summarised below:

ARARIEERFHRERAENHFMBERNER
B ERE

BEANSEEEAGNFHHAS

o« FMAARRARAEANTH LOBF
5T

ARAIERBARFIAES - ARSI Rk

BLAKEEKIEENTRAR - L H
BITBABRBRABERMNKR - HEREE
SHZEANMINBZEHE

FHAERRREANKRREEART
FREMRER : &

FHASRAREEERSREEARN
EEREARBHTTABIE °
R-F—=% FHZES:

o REBAKENEBRERBRR  BF
KAHhMERERERR BB ICARE

o RENSAEEASFMESNTIZMN &

R EEME -

Sy iE

- *i%ﬁT REE ° F
- FrhETSHR

S

@ R
=]

s w=

Bz
[E=
T

‘D]]IJ PH
i

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in 2013

BERER-_ZF-—=ZFETHNFHEESSBNLHERR

Meetings Attended/Held

Percentage

FriifE/ BTEH Bt

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHATES

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI (chairman)
RERE L (EE)

1/1 100%

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
SRIZ R

1/1 100%

Non-Executive Director:

FHITES

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
BXABEE

1/1 100%
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006 comprising three NEDs, two of whom are INEDs. As at the date
of this Annual Report, the members of the Nomination Committee are
Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling
Tsui and Mr Yung Wing Chung.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for Directorships;

e assessing the independence of INEDs; and

e making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the MD.

The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website

(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

In 2013, the Nomination Committee:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
made recommendations to the Board;

e reviewed the independence of INEDs;

e made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company; and

* reviewed the Board Diversity and Board Diversity Policy and
made recommendations to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2013. The attendance
record of the members of the Nomination Committee in 2013 is
summarised below:

REZEER_ZZFRTT—REE 18
ZEBEKEBR T — = E LS
T

Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in 2013

ERER-E-ZHFETHREZESERNHERBR

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
FRHiE/ RTEEH Batt
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
B EHITES !
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
_ - 1/1 100%
RICREIX
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 1 100%
RERIELT 6
Non-Executive Director:
FHITES :
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 11 100%
BRI °

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have:

e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

e made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and

e prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual and
interim reports, “price-sensitive” announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, as well as reports to
regulators and information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements. The responsibility of the External Auditors

for the audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 84 to 85 of this Annual Report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments,

the Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits
undertaken by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact on
their independence. The External Auditors are also required to review
their relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to the Audit
Committee confirming their independent status.

During 2013, the External Auditors (including any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the External Auditors or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of
all relevant information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally) provided the following audit and non-
audit services to the Group. Details are set out below:

12 S B %57 B

REGINERBANB L LT SR EMIEET
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BEDS R — B  BEREE  HEEMR
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2013 2012
HK$ HK$
FEEETT BT

Audit
2,125,000 1,859,000

EiZ

Non-audit services

uart servi 512,000 404,000

FEE LIRS

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors
are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee have decided to
outsource the review of the internal controls function to the Internal
Auditors and the Board has delegated to the management the
implementation of such system of internal controls as well as the
review of relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management procedures.
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Control Environment

The review of the internal control functions by the Internal Auditors
was based on the “COSQ” framework (the internal control framework
developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission).

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity are
clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook,
as well as the policies and procedures manuals, which set out the
rules and policies, for the Directors and employees to follow. These
cover all aspects of administrative and operational activities, including
relationships with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staffs.
The internal control system covers every activity and transaction of
the Group in RoadShow. The system is based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability. Our employees are an
important part of our internal system and the Group expects them

to contribute to that system. In addition to setting our guidelines,
principles and values, the Group recognises that an environment
where employees feel free to bring problems to management is also
necessary to make our internal control system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditors with particular professional experience in assessing risks
and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control
environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, and documented those processes that are critical to the
Group’s performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor

the system of controls on an ongoing basis and the MD and Chief
Financial Officer have to report any significant changes, deficiencies
and material weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal controls to
the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors.
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Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal
Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors
update and review the Company’s internal control system every year
in such a way that the update and review of all the major components
of the internal control system are completed within a period of three
years. The Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management
to improve internal controls after each review for management and
Audit Committee’s consideration.

During 2013, the Internal Auditors reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with relevant policies and procedures of the
Company. The scope covered the following processes:

e BUS-TV Advertising
«© programming and production, operation and contract compliance

e BUS-BODY and IN-BUS Advertising
o operation and contract compliance

e Web portal
« content development, sales and marketing

e Follow-up of prior year’s IA findings
e Follow up of compliance to updated corporate governance
requirement

e Control Self Assessment

Based on the findings and comments from the Internal Auditors and
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control system
effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2013.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company’s
shareholders were identified.
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Business Ethics

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the
“CCDE”) has long been established to ensure that both Directors
and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of defined ethical
obligations and appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses
and/or performing their duties. The CCDE also provides guidance
on responsibility to the Group’s shareholders, customers and the
community. Any member in breach of the CCDE is subject to
disciplinary action. The CCDE is updated from time to time, taking
into account changes in the relevant legislation and the business
environment.

A set of Code of Conduct can be accessed through the Company’s
intranet and the Company’s website.

Price-sensitive information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company

is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that information that is expected to be price sensitive
should be announced immediately;

conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guide on disclosure of
price-sensitive information” issued by the Stock Exchange in 2002;

has included in its Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or insider information; and

has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior staff of the
Group are identified and authorised to act as the Company’s
spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated areas of
issues.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company required all its Directors to comply with the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year 2013.

The Company’s Code on Securities Transactions is prepared on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out
in the Report of the Directors on pages 80 to 81 of this Annual Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders is
essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group’s
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as follows:

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the

Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The Company maintains

a corporate website (www.roadshow.com.hk) where important corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial information
such as annual reports and interim reports to shareholders, notices and

announcements, circulars and other information is available for review by

shareholders and other stakeholders.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting and special general meetings
provide a useful platform for direct communication between the
Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange for
the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to
be sent at least 10 clear business days before in the case of all other
meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all shareholders have
21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Special
General Meeting (SGM) for the passing of a special resolution, and 14
clear days’ notice of all other general meetings at which the Directors
and Committee chairmen or members are available to answer their
questions. A representative (usually the engagement partner) of the
External Auditor also attends the AGM and will take questions from
shareholders relating their audit of the Company’s financial statements.
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The 2013 annual general meeting was held on 13 May 2013. One —E-CERRAFAEN_ZE—=FA1A
special general meeting was held during the year. The attendance TZBET FRETT -RREFIARE -
record of the Directors at the general meetings in 2013 is set out BEER _E=FRIIBRFERGEELEE
below: BT

Attendance of individual Directors at general meetings in 2013

BEER-_ZF-ZFETHRRAENHESR

AGM Attended/Held SGM Attended/Held
s/ BTEE e/ BTEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI

1/1 1/1
BRI+ / /

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung

SRR 1 1

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

- B S K K

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung

5 B B K K

Non-Executive Directors:

FHITES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)

BOLEE () 1 1

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)

1/1 1/1
thBEEZ L (axE)

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)

. _ 1/1 1/1
Aok A E(FIEE)

Mr MAK Chun Keung

1/1 1/1
iR SE

Mr John Anthony MILLER

' s 1/1 1/1
HEERE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

1/1 1/1
{3

Exe cutive Director:

HITES -

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

e 1/1 1/1
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Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other
than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon as
possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the earlier of
the commencement of the morning trading session or any pre-opening
session on the business day following the meeting, on the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites together with details of the
meeting, including the time and venue and major resolutions.

Shareholders’ Right

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at

the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company and carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board of the Company, to convene a SGM
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition shall be deposited at our Hong Kong principal office at 9 Po
Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM
or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being submitted
by shareholders, addressed to the Share Registrar of the Company

in Hong Kong or the Company Secretary at the principal office.

The detailed procedures vary according to whether the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether
the proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director of
the Company as a director. The relevant procedures are set out in the
Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of this Annual Report
to shareholders and will be included with the notice to shareholders of
any future AGM. The procedures for shareholders to convene and put
forward proposals at an AGM or SGM (including election of a person
other than a Director of the Company as a director) are available on
the website of the Company or on request to the Company Secretary.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2746 5200 or e-mail at cosec@roadshow.com.hk
or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM. Questions on the
procedure for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or
SGM may also be put to the Company Secretary at the same means.

Constitutional Documents

During 2013, the Board confirmed that there were no significant
changes made in the Company’s Bye-laws.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013

B EEEEERRIERESF

WMEEH - AT (852) 2746 5200 5 EE
cosec@roadshow.com.hk Bt 48 A Bl IE » 8
BEERRRBFRAGIRREGRI RS L#RE -
MESSRE - BHEEHRRAFAGHME
FRAERE LIREEFEFOMEE - Ira]
KR—AXmAsMERDY -

BEXH

R-ZF—=F EFEHIALRFNREHAA
BEFELERNERER] -

g



Report of the Directors

EEERE

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of
RoadShow Holdings Limited
HRABERERATARRN
B % B R

Consolidated Income
Statement

meBEER

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

FerEHRER

Consolidated
Balance Sheet

REEERER

Balance Sheet
EEEER

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
mEEREHR

Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement

FERTREXR

Notes to the Financial
Statements

BI R IR R MY



78

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EZEHE

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Directors”) have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Principal place of business

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda and
has its registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and principal place of business at 9
Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of
media sales and management and administrative services for
Multi-media On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-TV”), transit vehicle
exteriors (“BUS-BODY”) and interiors (“IN-BUS”), online portal
and mobile apps advertising businesses and the operation of
media advertising management services through marketing
advertising spaces on transit vehicle exteriors, interiors,
shelters, outdoor signages, online portal and mobile apps and
the provision of advertising agency services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the financial
year are set out in note 2 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 86 to
1583 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK7.94 cents per share (2012: HK7.50 cents per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
24 to the financial statements. There were no movements
during the year.

Transfer to reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
before dividends, of HK$104,853,000 (2012: HK$74,817,000)
has been transferred to reserves. Details of movements in the
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman

Mr YUNG Wing Chung

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
BBS, JP

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung*
SBS, OBE, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

Mr MAK Chun Keung

Mr John Anthony MILLER
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

Deputy Chairman

Managing Director

*

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), Mr YUNG Wing Chung, Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
and Mr Edmond HO Tat Man retire from the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2013 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding
companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) at that date as recorded in the register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

Exm)

BREARRNABMAAET RARBBEHARS
FRERAREREZ EMARR EHRR ) K &%
14887 - BKBELE  BAERERMENEE
KEGERIEZTS([EFT])  ERRNEKE
THRRBFAS LIREET -

NSRS By =N R385 3 E I SR )
BRBFAS LEREEENEFITLEMNR—F
AEARBREEMMBLRARIEEANE - F
R B 18 (BR — RROETE BB SN 79 il K & o 1O i 75
8% -

EEREN  HRROREERENES
5879
BREBCEZRBEGRID(KEHRBEHEDID])F
B2 GEREAFENEZTRERTHRAERRR
KEEEMMES R —=F+=-RA=+—
AEENESRZARARRA » HERAR - W
BRrrakEMBABEE(ER A(ESFRBE K
B RAD R R DA T #E 2

Interests in issued shares REBTROPHER
Total % of total
number of issued shares
Personal Family Corporate Other  shares held E28
Beneficial interests interests interests interests interests k2] BRTRA
BLER BAES RERER ARER HirgEs BB BAt
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AR BREERY%01 THEER
Ms Winnie NG (Note 1) mESLZL(HF1) 1,000,000 - 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) (Note 2): Ordinary shares of HK$1.0 each
HEARERERAR(EED (M22) SREEBE1.0THERR
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEEL 2,000 - - 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG (Note 3) mESLZL(F3) 41,416 - 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%

Notes:

1. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 123,743 shares in the Company as
a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the
shares.

2. TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

3. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,000,609 shares in TIH as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the
shares.
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Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures
(continued)

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

At 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERNRO - HEROREEZNES
592 1€ )

B LA FEN  EEREEAMEBIARM T\
FRBERARF  BEAERAF - MELQF
SEMARRBAB A A - HEAR D K EEET E
ARBE(EF LB EGRPDEI2HREAFEN
BRfMALEXREBE( LT ARNEZTETERRXS
MIRETADENE AR RNEMERIRE °

B MER

ARNRERELTRAUEIASKNHT KBS
BUFKTEFTNFEB U MERE  LRAR
BBUIFATESHABII -

TERRRAEMALTRARG - HERG
REERNERZRAR

R-Z—Z=ZF+_A=+—H8 BEARREER
R THABING AL FIEE AR RSk HEE M8
BEE (Ex B(BHFRIEHAIDE XV ) B kK
RBERDHESS KR ARB(BERBEK
PIEXVEFE2RINHRECHEARARE S
BAXSHERDR  ARIR(ELFLBEEG)
EIBHRAFRARRIFENETLRME - FHW
™

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

BREER%0ATHEER
% of total
Total number issued
Registered Corporate of shares shares
shareholders interests held E2HERT
BERR ATER RO EH =Rl
Substantial shareholders FERR
TIH (Note) HE(3) = 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 - 728,127,410 73.01%
Other person Hit AL
DJE Investment S.A. and others DJE Investment S.A. & &t 69,956,000 - 69,956,000 7.01%
2013k  HABERAERAF
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures (continued)

KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares in the
Company. KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TIH, which is accordingly deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares held by KMB Resources Limited
in the Company under the SFO.

Note:

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

TERRREMATRR®D - HERHG
REEENERKXR(H)

fizE : KMB Resources Limited ## 728,127,410 f% A
AAIE » KMB Resources Limited A& @H 2 &
MEBAR - BRB(ESREEEG)  SBRER
% KMB Resources Limited Fr#5 18R 2 B &5 -

Br b Eoh ARG W EENS EHMAEL ARE

(% R D) 336 1577 B 10 B s M v i a5
AR o

RANDRRERE

BREARARAFARERNENERERESN
Mo RAFRTNEDS  AARCDER EHRA
PIRER R RFFRE ©

EENANES

ARTE - HEAERAR - KB AR SE R B
AU BB2ERITEAEERN  EARAES
RAFEZEZBINFAEABERERZESEXF

FTEFEFRHER

RAMBFERN  AEETEXP RHEEHENL
MIHENMBEEMDRIFEINWT

Percentage of the Group’s total

EEEEBHESL
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer BAREF 6%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFER 17%
The largest supplier BARMER 31%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARMEEESE 57%

At no time during the year have the Directors and their
associates had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

During the year, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, is the
largest supplier of the Group.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 49 to 55 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 154
to 155 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and participates in employee pension schemes organised
by the local governments of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) under the regulations of the PRC. All these retirement
schemes are defined contribution plans and their particulars
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
HERABERARQIDRROB L ZBA RS

Independent auditor’s report to the
shareholders of RoadShow Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of RoadShow Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 86 to
1583, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

14 March 2014

BB ED B AE (50)

BMERBEEEGAMASEBI(EREEE

RNETERZ - RFRNBRRMETERRE

FREILRTER  NEEREUEREMBR
EENFEEMNERERRAL -

BRI RATRFUNERA MG M B RRAE
THELBRBEERNERERRE - FIEENREFIUR
RZBEF - BRFEARRFRBERTME
BEEMBRRAERNERBGEN AR - G
ZERRE ZBMEREZNTNEEMA T
RESEAMGHERBEAAMESH - URFEE
BRI 0 B IR YR R A ER 12 I A0 RBE &
FER - BERNERIBEZAHRANETER
VRBEMERAELRNERH AR AR - ARG
BRAMBEHRRNERIIRTA -

HFIRE - RPAESHNEZERRE TR M}
REMANEZERIRHEER -

(et
i3
=

=R

RARR  ZEFEUBERRERB(E BB R
SEADEEMATFHRKR EAAER BEEER
“E=FFT_A=T-HOEKRRLR B&E
EEEZALFENRBANERSRE YRR
BR(RAGRIDOBEBEREZ RREE -

EEREHERAR
BRI AT
EBBIR

FEITE 1055
KFKRE8E
—E—NE=A+IMH

20185  BFABERBRAR

85



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-=F+t-A=1t-HLFE (RBEHE)

Note 2013 2012
Ff 5 $°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Turnover =E 20 2&3 462,002 421,154
Other revenue and other net income H A A & EAth U a5 F 58 4 26,212 22,019
Total operating revenue S PN L] 488,214 443,173
Operating expenses rREBEH
Royalty, licence and management fees EHNE - BHEREES (166,356) (143,006)
Cost of production BERA (83,466) (81,354)
Staff expenditure BIMRA (81,973) (72,743)
Depreciation e (11,262) (10,784)
Cost of inventories FERA (7,201) (6,575)
Repairs and maintenance HIERRE (3,391) (4,378)
Other operating expenses HipkeE & A (35,683) (27,843)
Total operating expenses REBERBRE (389,332) (346,683)
Profit from operations wEEF 98,882 96,490
Reversal of impairment loss on other BoHMmemEERE
financial assets g 5 25,611 —
Profit before taxation BR AT 2 R 6 124,493 96,490
Income tax Fris®i 7(a) (15,871) (16,991)
Profit for the year AEERER 108,622 79,499
Attributable to: PG
Equity shareholders of the Company ARATRR 10 104,853 74,817
Non-controlling interests IR RE 3,769 4,682
Profit for the year AEFZRER 108,622 79,499
Earnings per share (in Hong Kong cents) SRER (B 12
Arising from the Group’s operations EEBASEREER 7.94 7.50
Arising from reversal of impairment loss on EEEREHMEMEE
other financial assets REEE 2.57 -
Basic - %N 10.51 7.50
Diluted e N/ATEA N/AFiE A

The notes on pages 93 to 153 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders

of the Company attributable to the year are set out in note 11. 11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReETEWBER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-ZF1+ZAZ+-BLFE (REB%HE)

2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Profit for the year AEZRR 108,622 79,499
Other comprehensive income for the AEEHMEE KR
year (after tax and reclassification (BRBREFOERAER) :
adjustments):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently ~ HE gt EH D ESIEREMIER
to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale debt securities: A HEERES
Changes in fair value recognised in the fair FREZR R AEEREDN
value reserve during the year, net of nil tax AREEEZS > MEBEZEHIER (1,847) 1,750
Exchange differences on translation of the BERBUNEBTBRERN
financial statements of operations outside ELERE IKREHER
Hong Kong, net of nil tax 365 74
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HEKZEE 107,140 81,323
Attributable to: EEmT
Equity shareholders of the Company PN 103,371 76,641
Non-controlling interests IR RE S 3,769 4,682
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEHEHKNRETE 107,140 81,323

The notes on pages 93 to 153 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZZB-ZH+ZA=+—8 (RE%HE)

Note 2013 2012
MiaE $’000 $°000
Fr ST
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 13 48,938 49,122
Non-current prepayments and deposits ERBEANTERES 14 12,484 3,741
Other financial assets Hitem&ERE 16 8,124 81,296
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE 23(b) 3,770 2,618
73,316 136,777
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 17 975 1,164
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEUR R 4842 BR A B FE 18(a) 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries W E R A RRIE 18(d) 31,640 14,695
Accounts receivable FEUWBR X 19 145,323 117,567
Other receivables and deposits HihEW R R IR S 11,148 17,794
Other financial assets Hihem&EE 16 95,559 -
Current tax recoverable FEU AR HR R 18 23(a) 1,078 3,491
Pledged bank deposits SIEAIRITER 20 61,400 60,200
Bank deposits and cash RITERRERES 21 359,066 409,791
711,193 629,706
Current liabilities REBaE
Accounts payable FE{FBRFX 22 1,592 2,276
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENERNEA T RIE 18(d) 5,888 7,849
Other payables and accruals Hib (SRR ESTE A 90,693 91,628
Current tax payable FE{S A HAR 1B 23(a) 1,755 8,459
99,928 110,212
Net current assets REBEEFE 611,265 519,494
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBEE 684,581 656,271
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 23(b) 129 157
NET ASSETS BEZRE 684,452 656,114
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFES
Share capital &N 24(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves B 575,010 546,441
Total equity attributable to FNUNGT TS
equity shareholders of the Company PE{h R 4R 674,747 646,178
Non-controlling interests R E S 9,705 9,936
TOTAL EQUITY A 684,452 656,114

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 14 March 2014. i

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

o

KEEGR_Z

—MF =+ M A Z A& A

Alex MO Tik Sang

PRIEEE L EH4E

Chairman Managing Director

FE g

The notes on pages 93 to 153 form part of these financial 593 B & F 153 B #5758 AR B 15 | X 79 — &8
statements. s
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BALANCE SHEET
EERER

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZZB-ZH+ZA=+—8 (RE%HE)

Note 2013 2012
Mig $°000 $’000
Fr T
Non-current assets ERENEE

Investments in subsidiaries MEBARKRE 15 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR Y B A R FRIE 18(c) 72,558 512,827
135,393 575,662

Current assets REEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEUN B AR A IR A B FIE 18(a) 5,004 5,004
Amount due from subsidiary FEUSHE B A R FRIE 18(c) 427,664 —
Other receivables and deposits HihEWERA R IR S 1,184 1,392
Pledged bank deposits SIEMIRITER 20 61,400 60,200
Bank deposits and cash RITERRES 21 100,026 161,907
595,278 228,503

Current liabilities REBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT I B A B FRIE 18(b) 216,264 208,165
Other payables and accruals Hib (SRR ESTE A 7,776 5,540
224,040 213,705

Total assets less current liabilities A 506,631 590,460
Non-current liabilities E i p=Li

Amounts due to subsidiaries EHB AR FE 18(b) 126,411 133,159
NET ASSETS EEFE 380,220 457,301
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAERFEES 24(a)

Share capital [i&:N 99,737 99,737
Reserves e 280,483 357,564
TOTAL EQUITY R 380,220 457,301

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors RAEFGN T —MF = H + 0 B %A F A&

on 14 March 2014, e

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Alex MO Tik Sang
PRIQEE L FHEE

Chairman Managing Director
FE EFELE

The notes on pages 93 to 153 form part of these financial S£93EZF 153 EH T B AT K w &K a —

statements. fn e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-=F+-A=+-ALFE (RE%HHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRES
(Ac-
cumulated
Fair losses)/ Non-
Note Share Share  General Contributed Other value Exchange retained controlling Total
Mz capital ~ premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
(B3
MEE &)/

BA  RGEE -REE REBR  AHER M NERE REEA 4 FEREE  BuAE
$000 $1000 $'000 $'000 $000 $1000 $1000 $'000 $000 $000 $1000
fn fn T T T T T T T fn fn

Balance at 1 January 2012 W-®-—E-F-RHEH 9737 531,769 602 (200) (605) (27 14181 (14881) 630476 11256 641,730
Changes in equity for 2012 —F-ZFHERETH:
Profit for the year REERA - - - = = - - 81T T4BIT 4682 79499
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2EkE - - - - - 1,750 74 - 1,824 - 1,824
Total comprehensive income  AEE2EUELE - - - - - 1,750 74 74,817 76,641 4,682 81,323

Dividend approved in respect of BB LEECHEN

the previous year RE 11(b) = = = = = = = (60,939)  (60,939) - (60,939)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B FHERERM
interests RE - - - - - - - - - (6,000 (6,000

Balance at 31 December 2012 W=E-—£+-F=1-AR

and 1 January 2013 -§-z5-f-Ahks 909737 531,769 602 (200)  (605) 1628 14255 (1003 646178 993 656114
Changes in equity for 2013:  —Z-=ZEHEHET

Profit for the year REERA - - - - - - - 104853 104,853 3769 108,622

Other comprehensive income  Efr2 - - - - - (1,847) 365 - (1,482) - (1,482)
Total comprehensive income ~ AFE2EHEARE - - - - - (1,847) 365 104,853 103,371 3,760 107,140
Share premium reduction RiEESE 24(0)0) - (531,769) - 531,769 - - - - - - -
Dividend approved in respect of BB LEETHEN

the previous year e 11(0) - - - - - - - (gD (14809 - (g0
Dividend paid to non-controlling S FAERERN

interests RE - - - - - - - - - (4,000) (4,000)
Balance at 31 December 2013 ~ RZE-=E+ZA=1-AMi&H 99,737 - 602 531,569 (605) (224) 14,620 29,048 674,747 9,705 684,452

The notes on pages 93 to 153 form part of these financial 593 B ZF 153 B WM iE B AR Bk &) — &

statements. fn e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-ZF1+ZAZ+-BLFE (REB%HE)

Note 2013 2012
Mig $°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Operating activities REES
Profit before taxation BRE AT EF 124,493 96,490
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation e 11,262 10,784
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEERE 103 1,061
Reversal of write-down of inventories 3 6] 17 & HUR (68) (110)
Reversal of impairment loss on other BEHEMtmSmERE
financial assets RIEREE (25,611) —
Interest income FE WA (9,922) (11,885)
Foreign exchange gain (ERAE (4,639) (1,329)
Operating profit before changes in working & E&SLS AT
capital R B R 95,618 95,011
Decrease in current prepayments RBFER B - 9,580
Decrease in inventories FERD 257 252
Increase in amounts due from fellow R R R HE A R
subsidiaries FRIEIE 0 (16,945) (8,530)
Increase in accounts receivable FE UK BRFRAE hn (27,756) (315)
Increase in other receivables and deposits Hith pEuk BRFR R IR & 38 0 (623) (10,615)
Decrease in accounts payable FE (S BRFOR 2> (684) (2,094)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to fellow EAERKE A RE
subsidiaries CRI) /18 (1,961) 1,407
Decrease in other payables and accruals HittES R R ETER
oA (932) (19,018)
Cash generated from operations REKETHNES 46,974 65,678
Tax paid [EERE R
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — EBEBRER (20,862) (14,002)
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC?”) — B EARKEFE
income tax paid (T E ) FriEH (485) (94)
Net cash generated from operating activities REKEEEHNR S FHE 25,627 51,582
2013F#H  BWABERBRAE 91



92

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-=F+t-A=1t-BLFE (RE%HE)

Note 2013 2012
Mig $°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Investing activities RETH
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABREEEMNRK (12,862) (8,770)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBEEEMBIIE 47 10,401
Interest received 2WFE 11,539 13,056
Decrease in bank deposits with original REHRARBB=@AN
maturities over three months RITEFR D 61,040 15,274
Net cash generated from investing activities REREFZENRESFE 59,764 29,961
Financing activities mMEES
Increase in pledged bank deposits EIK R ITFZRIE M (1,200) (19,000)
Dividend paid ERRE (74,802) (60,939)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders ~ BAY FIFIERRENRE (4,000) (6,000)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBETENRESFE (80,002) (85,939)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRBSEEWEM
equivalents R ) 8 5,389 (4,396)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HHNRER
REeEEY 152,120 156,033
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSEHW 1,744 483
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—HHNELER
REeZEY 21 159,253 152,120

The notes on pages 93 to 153 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R I EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEERS - GRBEE)

1.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that certain investments (see note 1(e)) are stated at
their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

1. TEEFHE

(a)

(b)

EHEH
AMBHRRCERBEGAMAG(E
ARG ) ROGNMEEMNKERY
BREENN (BB HREER)])
BRAABEANEIEEMBRSEE
A (FEGFEUNKKERE G E
DD E2E  BEARESFRANER
(RAIGHDDNBEERERE - N BR
RMNEEEMAEXIMARDA TR
(EHEMRADAT EMRR D) 0 E A
BRE ARERANTIZEERM
BHENTX -

ARG AT RME THA REER
(BEMBMESER)  ZFHT MEEFT
BRNAEERARARRG T HEER
AR AR R AR o B EE 1(c) B DI R
RIEREREE AR EZEERTER
MEERAFBHRRARKREREEES
AR RREHNER

MBHREREE
BE-T—=F+-A=+—BLLFEX
BEMBBRREEARARENE QA
(RAE[AEE])

RENBERRARBOAEEERELK
A& EETRE(RME1(e) NREA
ABEIE-

RERET (BB BREERDN I ER
K BEEAFLHHEHBENERR
EE AfFE WARXHWNBESHEES
FlE - fAE R BER o fhEt RIBABRR IR
BREERMEREREEZSBER N
BAENSEEMERAERMEL - A
BHERDEREEEMBAIREREME
RS E E K B ERE(E M EH B &
e BRAERAEEHNZSFMHTEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements are discussed in note 30.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

e Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

e HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

e HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

e HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

e Amendments to HKFRS
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

7 - Disclosures -

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of new or
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income in the financial
statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated,
by focusing on whether the entity has power over the
investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all
the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those previously required by the respective
standards. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided these
disclosure in note 15.

FESHEEE)
(c) EFTBUREE (&)

(BRETERE RN - [HEH
XH25 — Rt 2 E Wz EEHZ5) ]

ol
i}

H &
E-I :k?lg DH"

THTE ERFEaETHRENER
BERBRUEETHDEZEEN
@ WHIEHE KT EERHDBEERE
\'E']ﬁ’rﬁliﬁqﬁl mBEPHAZRY - AEE
HEEITRTBBRERPEREZERGER
P EMEEKENTH -

o — Bt

\

H\D (L E\\

(BRUMBRELERDFE10R - [FE24HK
# %/
(BEMBHRELERDE10FRKEBR
R BHRRA(E A ELDF 27
”F HEERBLMEREX IARER(E
REBZEQ)REF 2%/ &0 — #
HANERZINBE (BAEMBREE
RDE 10| AE —ZHEER - UEE
%&Txé@?f’r%l«x/ﬂﬁ EBERERR
LBERZEHRKRERR A2EFRER
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NN ERBENZEZSZDRESENEES

R R B B BB R4 R R E 105
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ERFINRHEE - RWREEATEHK
BARER-FT-=F—A—ALEEM
BREH RO E AR ES
%

& o
(BBUBEHS
a5 E |
(BEMBHRELERDE 12K ERNMH
BLoR] - aERY  BMEDRRRIFEAR
BEBERNESNMBRBERERER
AR-IEE KR (BB BWEER)
F1I2RATHREBELTRBRZBER
BEMREEEREZ - WAEEERH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 183 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains extensive
disclosure requirements about fair value measurements
for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided these
disclosure in note 25. The adoption of HKFRS 13
does not have any material impact on the fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures - Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
Those new disclosures are required for all recognised
financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments and transactions, irrespective
of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on the financial statements because the Group
has not offset financial instruments, nor has it entered
into master netting arrangement or similar agreement
which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during
the periods presented.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

Other investments in debt securities and equity
interest

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt securities and equity interest,
other than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividend and interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out in notes 1(o)(v) and (iv).
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other investments in debt securities and equity

interest (continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the balance
sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
which do not fall into any of the above categories are
classified as available-for-sale investment. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to
this, investments in equity interest that do not have
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet
at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Dividend
income from equity interest and interest income from
debt securities calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in notes 1(o)(v) and 1(o)
(iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt
securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years

Billboards Over the remaining

lease term
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

() Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming cost
in respect of programming rights of presentation.
Expenditure on commissioned and contracted
programmes is amortised to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the licence period.

(i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Accounts receivable and other receivables

(i)

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 1(i)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities
and equity interest and receivables
Investments in debt securities and equity interest
and current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities

and equity interest and receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity interest carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
loss for equity interest carried at cost is not
reversed.

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the assets’ carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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1. TEEFBRE)

(i) EERME@E
(i) EHFEFRRERERERR LB

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities

and equity interest and receivables (continued)

— For available-for-sale debt securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable included within
accounts receivable, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify

indications that fixed assets and investments in

subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet may

be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of unquoted equity interest carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

)]

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out costing
method and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or
the Company has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

() Income from multi-media sales, bus interior
and exterior advertising, and advertising on
transit vehicle shelters and outdoor signages is
recognised when the related advertisements are
telecast or commercials appear before the public.
Revenue is stated net of agency commission and
rebate.

(i) Fee income from media sales management
and administrative services, production of
advertisements, and advertising agency services
is recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(9)]

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the merchandise have
been transferred to the customers. Revenue is
stated net of trade discounts.

(iv) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established.

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and
subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong is Hong
Kong dollar while that for subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC is Renminbi. The presentation currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in equity which relate to that operation
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(t)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2. Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments.

Hong Kong: Provision of media sales and
management services and design and
production of advertisements
Mainland China: Provision of media advertising agency
services and design and production of

advertisements

There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and
non-current assets and liabilities, respectively, which are
directly managed by the segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is set out
below.
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2. Segment reporting (continued) 2. DEHRE(E)
(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets (@ EMAIHWA - BFFIEBEE  BERE
and liabilities: &
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B Bl KB Mgt
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Fr Fr T Fr
Revenue from external RENMBEEH
customers WA 461,402 416,971 600 4,183 462,002 421,154
Other revenue and other net HAW A R & fh iz
income/(loss) /(58) 38 11,922 8,755 (88) 14 11,834 8,769
Reportable segment revenue 2HAPBBA 473,324 425,726 512 4,197 473,836 429,923
Reportable segment profit 2RI HBEF 104,297 97,690 24,026 91 128,323 97,781
Depreciation for the year REEFRE (10,043)  (10,192) (28) (48)  (10,071)  (10,240)
Reversal of impairment loss BEHMEMERE
on other financial assets WEEE - - 25,611 - 25,611 -
Reportable segment assets EHRPBEE 501,776 518,464 196,368 164,341 698,144 682,805
Additions to non-current FRIERE D
segment assets during the BENRE
year 12,862 8,770 - - 12,862 8,770
Reportable segment liabilities ZHHHERE 99,733 110,182 324 187 100,057 110,369
(o) The Group’s reportable segment liabilities are equal (o) A& l E’Ji FoEBEREREREBELR
to consolidated total liabilities. Reconciliations of K o HWA -~ BRNSEEREES
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss and assets EEZZD—F :

are as follows:

2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr Tt
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue zib’z 2 EBULA 473,836 429,923
Unallocated other revenue and PEEMBAR
other net income ,H\ﬁiﬂ.llilm,? 14,378 13,250
Consolidated total operating revenue GERE AR 488,214 443,173
Profit or loss BEAHEER
Reportable segment profit 2RI EBEFI 128,323 97,781
Unallocated other revenue and Ko EEARAR
other net income H fth Y 22 F 58 14,378 13,250
Unallocated head office and RAOMANRERR
corporate expenses BEIH (18,208) (14,541)
Consolidated profit before taxation FEBRBAIRF 124,493 96,490
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets ERHBEE 698,144 682,805
Available-for-sale debt securities AHHEEKEES 78,072 81,296
Unallocated head office and corporate assets RHAOTAMEERSEESE 8,293 2,382
Consolidated total assets GEEEHARE 784,509 766,483
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Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media
sales and management and administrative services for
Multi-media On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-TV”), transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, online portal and mobile
apps advertising businesses and the operation of media
advertising management services through marketing
advertising spaces on transit vehicle exteriors, interiors,
shelters, outdoor signages, online portal and mobile apps
and the provision of advertising agency services.

Turnover represents income from media sales and
management and administrative services and advertising

agency services, net of agency commission and rebate.

Other revenue and other net income

3. EX®

AEETEREARDERB(IRDZHE]
HELTERDERS TEEREZINERE
FAE - Bui R FHRERREARS ZHREHR
HEHE  BERITHRS  UREBER
FEEEWMESIE ERAR RES - P
SNESMMESM WU R FHEMRREN
REBBESEERY  ARREHESKE
AR5

ERBEARAERS REOMNEK  KREKE
HE  BEERTBRE - URESRERS
HYULA

4. HWARH 5% 5

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Other revenue Hinl A
Interest income from listed available-for-sale RELMAHEEERESN
debt securities FIE A 3,097 3,147
Other interest income HaF 2 UWA 6,825 8,738
Interest income from financial assets not at REWLFFBRERZAAER
fair value through profit or loss SRS B E N R SR A 9,922 11,885
Sales of merchandise EmEE 11,611 9,816
Sundry revenue HibUg A 416 29
21,949 21,730
Other net income Hit Wz B 58
Exchange gain Rz E 4,366 1,350
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERFE (103) (1,061)
4,263 289
26,212 22,019
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5. BEHMEMEERESR

5. Reversal of impairment loss on other

financial assets

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
requested an investee to repay the loans totalling
$70,154,000 due to the Group upon expiry. However, the
investee had defaulted on the agreed repayment schedule.
As a result, the Group recorded full impairment losses of
$70,154,000 and $15,882,000 on the loans to and amount
due from the investee, respectively. During the year ended
31 December 2013, the Group began the negotiations with
two independent third parties to dispose of the Group’s
entire interest in the investee and the loans to and amount
due from the investee (the “Disposals”). At 31 December
2013, the management considered that the conclusion
of the agreements in relation to the Disposals was highly
probable and a portion of the loans to the investee
amounting to $25,611,000 was expected to be recovered.
Accordingly, a reversal of impairment loss on the loans to
investee of $25,611,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2013. Agreements in relation to the
Disposals have been subsequently executed after the year
end (see note 31(a)).

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

RBEE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—"HILEE
REBERERERRIRBREERERE
EEMEFHL70,154,000T ° AW > WK
ERRAABEBENERBBRER - B
b AREBESRBBHETHEEARNE
ARERHWEE AR REN 2SR EEIE
70,154,000 7T }% 15,882,0007C © R & & —
E—=F+-A=+—HLEFE A5EH
MEBYUFE=FREAER  UWHEXEER
WRERRINZHMKRE S THERELQAD
ERREURIEERRFB(THESE]) -
R-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—H EEEBRAE
EREBLESTENGZRERS L TH
BRE QAW ER—&H R 225,611,000 7T TE
HgmmE - Bt REBEZT—=F+=
A=Z+—BLFE  BLEGKTHIEERA
B B X EY R (B B 18 25,611,000 B FE R o
ERHEEENMBRERERTL(RK
31(a)) °

BR Bt Bl 2 7
BR B A & M 2 HIBR

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fx Tt
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEMEN & 2,637 2,263
Contributions to defined contribution ERBMTRIARETEIN
retirement schemes R 1,947 1,566
Depreciation e 11,262 10,784
Reversal of impairment loss on other financial BROHMEREERE
assets Bia 25,611 —
Operating lease charges wEAETH
— land and buildings — T RIEF 5,819 3,435
— audio and visual equipment — HERE 5,309 5,465
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7.

Income tax in the consolidated income 7. IIRNGEEBERNFER

statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FIRGEBRERNHES !
represents:
2013 2012
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Current tax ZREpFEE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for REEFERER
the current year BiE 16,541 16,373
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (95) (58)
16,446 16,315
Provision for PRC income tax REIFTS T BB 605 162
17,051 16,477
Deferred tax ELEBE
Reversal and origination of temporary T EENER R
differences R (1,180) 514
Income tax expense Frsfi = 15,871 16,991

(b)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for
subsidiaries in the PRC is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC.

AEENBEENSHBEDRRBAFE
AT ERRBNN16.5% (—FT——F:
16.5%)5t & - RPENKHBLRANHRIE
AR BIRITRERR RS -

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAB R ENBEMSTESHATN
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: Bk :
2013 2012
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Profit before taxation BRE AT 2R 124,493 96,490
Notional tax on profit before taxation, hERFL A B AR Z B F
calculated at the rates applicable to MR EEEE AR R
profits in the tax jurisdictions STENEERIE 20,746 16,003
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FAIEBE W EEE 136 275
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBIRA T IS E (5,901) (1,394)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEERENRELE 887 1,850
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (95) (58)
Others Hith 98 315
Actual tax expense ERHRIERS 15,871 16,991
20135 H)  HABERARAR
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8. Directors’ remuneration 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 RIBEEBCRAEOIDE 161 16 K% L4 B4
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing T EEMeBRENT :
Rules is as follows:
2013
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
#e 28 BiREHE
E=nd RER Mg i @t
$000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Tr r i Tr r
Executive Director HiTES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang E@ELE 110 1,776 2,524 15 4,425
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEHT 154 - - - 154
Ms Winnie NG gLt 176 - - - 176
Mr YUNG Wing Chung RKBEE 198 - - - 198
Mr MAK Chun Keung BiRBEE 110 - - - 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HERLE 110 - - - 110
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man mEXLE 110 - - - 110
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTEE
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HRERET 202 - - - 202
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FREEL 202 - - - 202
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung  REREHIR 202 - - - 202
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BEREL 110 - - - 110
1,684 1,776 2,524 15 5,999
2012
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 RIRGHE
B RER BiERA 5 @5t
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Executive Director HTES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang EHERE 110 1,776 1,739 14 3,639
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEEL 154 — — — 154
Ms Winnie NG ity 176 - - - 176
Mr YUNG Wing Chung ARBEE 218 - - - 218
Mr MAK Chun Keung EiRREE 110 - - - 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEBREE 110 - - - 110
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man M EE 110 - - - 110
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTEE
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HEREL 209 - - - 209
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung SREFL 202 - - - 202
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung  RIZR#HE 213 - - - 213
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BEREL 1 - - = 1
1,613 1,776 1,739 14 5,142
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9. Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2012: one) is a Director whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other four (2012: four) individuals are as follows:

BEeMe AL
IE&EeMe  ALtRBE—R(ZT——F:
—R)EF ZEEWERMESHE - 84
WE(ZZE——F: UR )&= e A LB
SREHI|MT

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

Fr T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e RMREMEF 5,691 5,412
Retirement scheme contributions BN EIHR 60 55
5,751 5,467

The emoluments of the four (2012: four) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

ZNE(ZE——F  OR)&HMEALH
MeoMmT

Number of individuals

AH
2013 2012

$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 Jt 4 4

10.Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of $2,279,000 (2012:
$3,415,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

10. A2 AR REME B A

KRR RELGEABINEE —£A8%
2,279,000 T (ZF— % : 3,415,000 7T ) &
BB WEBERAQANMBREAEDL
BRI o
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11.Dividends

(a) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year:

1.8 E
(a) *FERNFRARRNKE :

2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Final dividend proposed after the balance REEAREZED K
sheet date of 7.94 cents per share REAIR B SRR 7.94 1
(2012: 7.50 cents per share) (=ZZ—=%F : 8K 7.501L) 79,191 74,802

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet
date has not been recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date.

(b) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of

(b) ERFAMERKBN EFERNERQF

the Company attributable to the previous year, BRRRE :
approved and paid during the year:
2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Final dividend in respect of the previous ERERHLE KRR
financial year, approved and paid during —BEERPRE
the year, of 7.50 cents per share FR 7.501
(2012: 6.11 cents per share) (ZZ—=F : 8ke6.114L) 74,802 60,939

12.Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $104,853,000 (2012: $74,817,000)
and the weighted average of 997,365,332 ordinary
shares (2012: 997,365,332 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year. The calculation of basic earnings per
share arising from reversal of impairment loss on other
financial assets and the Group’s other operations is
based on profits arising from the respective operations
of $25,611,000 (2012: $Nil) and $79,242,000 (2012:
$74,817,000) respectively and 997,365,332 shares in
issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.
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13.Fixed assets 13.BEEEE

The Group
r5E
Audio
and visual Hardware  Furniture and Leasehold
equipment  and software fixtures  improvements Billboards Total
YERk ERRAM BRREE  HENEERE BER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
i Tr r i T T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 W=%--%£-A-H 229,739 3,461 1,667 1,438 - 236,305
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 2 5 - - 7
Additions B 700 1,526 657 313 3,500 6,696
Disposals HE (95,028) - - - - (95,028)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—%+-A=+-AH 135,411 4,989 2,329 1,751 3,500 147,980
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHTERAEERSE
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 RZE-ZF-A—-H 167,004 2,021 1,170 1,438 - 171,633
Exchange adjustments ERHZ - 2 5 - - 7
Charge for the year FRE 9,684 598 154 251 97 10,784
Written back on disposal HERRE (83,566) - - - - (83,566)
At 31 December 2012 R=Z-—#+=A=+-H 93,122 2,621 1,329 1,689 97 98,858
Net book value: RERE
At 31 December 2012 R=Z-—%+=A=+-H 42,289 2,368 1,000 62 3,403 49,122
The Group
e
Audio
and visual Hardware  Furniture and Leasehold
equipment  and software fixtures  improvements Billboards Total
FERB BERREH GRREE  HENERE BER @t
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
i i i T i i
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=£-f-H 135,411 4,989 2,329 1,751 3,500 147,980
Exchange adjustments EHAR - 9 17 - - 26
Additions wE 1,079 4,412 873 4,236 626 11,226
Disposals HE (319) - - (1,365) - (1,684)
At 31 December 2013 R=E-=%+-B=t-H 136,171 9,410 3,219 4,622 4,126 157,548
Accumulated depreciation Rt TERBERSE
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-f-H 93,122 2,621 1,329 1,689 97 98,858
Exchange adjustments EiHE - 7 17 - - 24
Charge for the year ERITE 8,203 1,127 217 498 1,217 11,262
Written back on disposal HERBER (169) - - (1,365) - (1,534)
At 31 December 2013 R=B-ZFE+=A=t-H 101,156 3,755 1,563 822 1,314 108,610
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+-A=+-AH 35,015 5,655 1,656 3,800 2,812 48,938
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14.kRBEANRERRE

FRDEANFALRCERBERTEE R
BRI MNEAERREEEEMNEM
FREREE - ZEFAL BB N HIRNAEE -

14.Non-current prepayments and deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits comprise
prepayments and deposits for purchase of fixed assets,
security for the due payment of licence fee and office
rental. The amounts are neither past due nor impaired.

15.Investments in subsidiaries 15.fIB A RIRE
The Company
VNN
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr T
Unlisted shares, at cost kLm0 RE 62,835 62,835

TREINMBRARNER - BRZHEBI
s A (2 2B R A B B AR o

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

P76 Mt 18 2 )15 73 B BE 1(d) BT JE 3% B X2 A
MEBAR  HEXECHARNEBEHNBHRERA

o A X gy
RERTE o

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under
note 1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s
financial statements.

Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and paid up interest (%)
incorporation/ capital EukE(EALL)
Name of company operation BRTREAR direct indirect Principal activity
AFER SR EE Y RAFE Hi B3 TEXH
AdSociety Advertising Agency Hong Kong $2 - 100 Investment holding
Limited BB 27 REZR
AEEBEEERAR
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$100 - 60 Provision of media sales service
Hong Kong 100% 7T for advertising on transit vehicle
KERLHE/ A shelters
RUEREERHEEZFEN
REHERS
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong $1 - 100 Provision of media sales service
EB 17 for advertising on transit vehicle
exteriors
RERESHEIIMBESHN
IR HERY
Cyberstop Limited The Beritish Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Holder of the registered design
Hong Kong 1£E7% and patent in relation to cyber bus
KERLHE/ A stops
BAABYEE L kMR
REA|
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB 10,0007 TEex
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15.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15. B ARIRE (&)

Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and paid up interest (%)
incorporation/ capital EitRE(EDL)
Name of company operation ERTREHE direct indirect Principal activity
ARER SR EEY RAFE B & TEXK
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong $1 - 100 Provision of media sales service
EB 17 for advertising on billboards
REEEEREENRBHERY
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB 10,0007 TEex
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Dormant
BB 27 TEex
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B 27T REBIRZmBEEEY
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing) The PRC US$500,000 — 100 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited (limited s 500,000 =7 agency service and design and
liability company) production of advertisements
RABES(LR)ERAF REUERESLERER
(BEREMEAT) R SR EEME
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong $2 = 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B# 27T REBTRZRBEEEY
RoadShow Media Holdings The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1E7% REZR
REEZHE/BH
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Provision of media sales &
B 27 management services for
advertising on transit vehicle
interiors and for BUS-TV business
REREEHERRR
BEUARBLEREBH
HEHERERRY
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1:7 REER
REEZHE/BH
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100  Events production and production
58 2 of content for BUS-TV systems
HEHERBMFETER
ZHEAR
RoadShow Resources Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 127 RELER
RERZHS/BE
RoadVision Holdings (China) The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1%% REER
REEZAE/BH
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15.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15. B ARIRE (&)

Attributable equity

Particulars of

Place of issued and paid up interest (%)
incorporation/ capital EitRE(EDL)
Name of company operation ERTREHE direct indirect Principal activity
ARER SR EEY RAFE B Eik: TEXK
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$2 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong EYH REER
REEZHE/BH
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong ES REER
RERLHE /A
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 127 RELER
RERZHS/BE
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Provision of employment
BB 27 agency services
REBERNRE
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 = 95 Dormant
&# 10,0007 S
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong $1 = 100 Provision of media sales service
B 17T for online advertising

REUME EEENERHERS
The following table lists out the information relating to Bus TREINEAAEER —HEEERIEERE
Focus Limited, the only subsidiary of the Group which has #= BV M B A 7] Bus Focus Limited ®1& £ o A
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised TE2IMPFHEERBE LS QR HEHEATN £
financial information presented below represents the B o
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

2013 2012

$°000 $’000

T T

NCI percentage FEREZT DL 40% 40%
Current assets MENE 34,543 36,703
Current liabilities mENEE 10,280 11,864
Net assets BEEFE 24,263 24,839
Carrying amount of NCI FEEE R AR AR EE 9,705 9,936
Revenue A 63,522 58,963
Profit for the year REERF 9,424 11,704
Total comprehensive income 2HEWRBEE 9,424 11,704
Profit allocated to NCI DEEFERESNEF 3,769 4,682
Dividend paid to NCI BATFHEERESORE 4,000 6,000
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNEESRE 7,641 10,682
Cash flows from financing activities RERMETHNEESRE (10,000) (15,000)
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16.0ther financial assets

16. At EREE

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fx Tt
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value 2 A BEVIEN T HEEEER
(listed outside Hong Kong) EH(BBEIILT) 78,072 81,296
Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, TR AR R BB 1R 5 BR Y
at cost less impairment losses I Emh Al SRR - =
Loans to investee WIRENTERK 25,611 —
Amount due from investee W IRE A RFRIE - =
103,683 81,296
Less: other financial assets classified as W P EARBEEN
current assets Hith e pEE
— Available-for-sale debt securities — A HEEEES
(listed outside Hong Kong) (BBZILE™) (69,948) —
— Loans to investee — WREQATER (25,611) -
Other financial assets classified as PERFRBEENEM
non-current assets SREE 8,124 81,296

(a) Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value
The listed debt securities are issued by corporate
entities with credit ratings ranging from BBB+ to
AA+. At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s
available-for-sale debt securities were neither past due
nor impaired.

The available-for-sale debt securities are due for
repayment in 2014 or 2015. Debt securities that will
mature within one year are classified as current assets.

(b) Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at
cost less impairment losses

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s
investment in an unlisted investee was classified as
available-for-sale equity interest as the Group does not
have significant influence over the investee.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, full impairment
losses on unlisted available-for-sale equity interest of
$143,371,000 have been recognised. Subsequent to
the year end, agreements in respect of the disposal
of such equity interest have been executed (see note
31(a)).

(a)

(b)

BAREEIRNIHEEEEES
IHEBEFAEENAN FBBB+E
AA+ BV RZBEIT - R-F—=F K=
T——F+-_HA=1—H AEENAH#
HERKESY EAHRLFRRE -

AHEEREREFIN T NFL—F
—HFHEE - KR —FRIBNER
BRNERRBDEE °

BRARREGRIIRNELTAREE
g

AR AEERBREARLEEATE
N R-B-—=FF-F—-F+_H
=t—H AEERFLTRRERAN
REWDBARHHEBE -

R_TE—ZFR_F——F+_fF=+—
H- - E#®R143,371,000 T8 3E L Af
HEERENZEREBE F£B1% -
ERVABEEZSREN HZE (KT
31(a)) °
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16.0ther financial assets (continued) 16. Htt e MEE (&)

(c) Loans to investee (c)
At 31 December 2012, loans to investee of
$70,154,000 were individually determined to be
impaired and impairment loss of $70,154,000 have
been made. At 31 December 2013, the Group
reassessed the recoverability of the loans to investee
and considered that a portion of the loans will be
recovered within twelve months of the balance sheet
date. A reversal of impairment loss of $25,611,000 has
been recognised in the current year accordingly (see
note 5).

(d) Amount due from investee (d)
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, amount due from
investee of $15,882,000 was determined to be
impaired and impairment losses of $15,882,000 have
been made (see note 5).

BWREATNER
#:;*:$+—H:+*E'A%w&

A A)#) 70,154,000 70 E X # (@ B E €
ﬁbﬁUME I B ¥EH 70,154,000 T HY
BEEBEBR RZT—=F+=ZA=+—
B AEBEFRTEHHERERREROA
el YREFOHERERLEERE
TZEARKE - At - ERAFERER
1 [6125,611,000 7T K 3 (B B 8 (R I &
5) o

R E D RARE
RZE—=Fk=ZFT-—ZF+=H
=+—H 15,882,000 T K E W & &
ARIRERETAETRE  YEIED
15,882,000 TTAYREE B (R HEES) o

17.Inventories 17. 78
Al of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise. FEFEEAREMmE KD -
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as BRRXENGFESBOT
follows:
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHERE EEEE 7,269 6,685
Reversal of write-down of inventories BB 78 # (68) (110)
7,201 6,575
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18.Amounts due from/(to) group companies

(@)

The amount due from ultimate holding company
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment. The amount is neither past due nor
impaired.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment,
except for amounts due to certain subsidiaries of
$126,411,000 (2012: $133,159,000), which have no
fixed terms of repayment but are not expected to be
repaid within twelve months of the balance sheet date.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment
except for amounts due from certain subsidiaries of
$72,558,000 (2012: $512,827,000), which have no
fixed term of repayment but are not expected to be
repaid within twelve months of the balance sheet date.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, amounts due from
certain subsidiaries of $126,669,000 were determined
to be impaired and impairment losses of $126,669,000
were made.

The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and
represent normal trade receivables and payables. The
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are neither past
due nor impaired.

18. FEUW /(FEfY) R B DA RKIR
() BRSKRERARREABEN  2ER

B TR TN o % pRIR L B A Y s 3RORL
8 e

(b) B E =T HE A FFIE 126,411,000 7T

(ZZ——4% : 133,159,000 7t) W EE F
BRE TESAEERE T _EANR
B ENHBARRBEAEEE %
BEREETERY -

(c) B JEUE T BB A Al 58 72,558,000 70

(ZZ——4% :512,827,000 0) W EEF
BN ETTEHRAEERR T _EAR
BEN  BURKHBARNBAERR &
BREREFERE -

RZEBE—=FF-_FT——F+-_HA=+—
B - W E T H B A RFIE 126,669,000
LB ARAE - WEEH 126,669,000
TLHRERE °

(d) FEd /()RR B LD EREREE

2R AREXRKER KRR
PR MR - %5 RAIR R 8
NRIM R EE s HERRE
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19.Accounts receivable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that
is neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired at the balance sheet date are as follows:

19. EUWBR X

REER - WEDRERNRBRRENER
RAHREOITFBWT

The Group
AEE

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr SFo
Neither past due nor impaired I fE I HA SR (B 87,116 51,409
Less than one month past due BHDR—EAR 26,038 17,005
One to two months past due B —Zm{EA 13,572 10,834
Two to three months past due BEME=1EA 6,107 31,451
More than three months past due mEEB=EA 12,490 6,868
145,323 117,567

According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note
25(a), credit period granted to customers is generally
within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances which are not
past due as disclosed above are within three months from
the invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable
when the recovery of the amount is remote. At 31
December 2013 and 2012, none of the Group’s accounts
receivable was individually determined to be impaired.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 25(a) to the
financial statements.
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RIBW T 25(a) TEAKBEHNEERER - — R
RYEFPHEEHR0H - Bk FAELX
FIRBENABHESRIRNERZAMR=BA
AR -

R A RBERS SR —FRkKE -

AR O eE#e A HEBEREKRER
AP - R -_FT—=FR - FT——"F+=
A=Z1t—B BIEXSENEWKERERE
ERAERE

I 8 i sk R E M R SR T R %
BRRCHENETFEMR -

sail
rﬁ’i
Si

BEEHERRENREFALES TRAE
ERERFERCENBUELPEH - RIE
BELR EEERGARZEEHRNEER
BRI AREBRERNNE  RZFEHRDER
RA MW E - BBARZFERIELRE
B ARETRFHERSE B EAEA

0
oo °

AEBENEERREAN P BERRMEE25(a)



20.Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between
subsidiaries of the Company and fellow subsidiaries and
between subsidiaries of the Company and a third party,
the subsidiaries have provided bank guarantees in favour
of the fellow subsidiaries and the third party for due
performance of the respective licence agreements. The
Company has pledged bank deposits of $61,400,000

20.BEHARITER

(2012: $60,200,000) to banks for the bank guarantees JT) °

issued.

21.Bank deposits and cash

A BITERERE

BRERRAMBARERRNE AR RAR
AMBARE - RE=NFUNE THHF
EHE WEBARAEREAZERITNSAR
BHFEBATNEE  FHAZER R B
REIRE=ZTNTBREANRITER - XRA]
AT B RITERARTEMRTFER
61,400,0007T(= & — = % : 60,200,000

The Group The Company
REH ¥ N/NE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
$’°000 $°000 $’°000 $°000
Fr Frx Fr o
Cash at bank and in hand RITERRRE 108,093 102,360 2,533 3,756
Bank deposits with original REIHA A
maturities within three ={@AARH
months RATIEM 51,160 49,760 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BERHASRER
for the purpose of cash MEmWRER
flow statement HEEEY 159,253 152,120
Bank deposits with original REIEA A
maturities over three BBR=EAMN
months RITFER 199,813 257,671 97,493 158,151
359,066 409,791 100,026 161,907
22.Accounts payable 22. B ERX
Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the REZER - ENERANRROWEFBET :
balance sheet date are as follows:
The Group
REE
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr T
Due within one month — BB AEH 1,592 2,276
2013F#H  BWABERBRAE
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22.Accounts payable (continued) 22. BRERF (&)
Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is HEE—RETASENEFEEHRNAWAR -
generally within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances which bt P Bl — & B R E B A 4 fR 19 0 2
are due within one month above are within three months SRBMEBE=EARNIE -

from the invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled BEMBEMNERER —FREN -
within one year.

23.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 23.37RGEEEEBXRNEH

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance (a) FINMREEERABRNEABHRES
sheet represents:

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REEBEBREH
for the year s 16,541 16,373
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EHREH (16,318) (11,734)
223 4,639
PRC income tax payable PR EFR S8 454 329
677 4,968
Reconciliation to consolidated balance sheet: RGEEEESEZRYHEK -
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Current tax recoverable recognised in the REREEEABREIN
consolidated balance sheet P A HR B 18 (1,078) (3,491)
Current tax payable recognised in the R EEEERERN
consolidated balance sheet FES AR B R 18 1,755 8,459
677 4,968
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23.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 23. 5 RGEEEEBRNWFAEHR (&)
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CRRBELHEEE (EFE) :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) HAEEABARNERRANELERIBEEE
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the S(BE)NERBHRNFRANES M
movements during the year are as follows: 5 &
The Group
A5H
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
related
depreciation Tax losses Total
BHARTE
MITERSR BiEER @t
$°000 $°000 $°000
ST Tr T
At 1 January 2012 RZE--f#-HF—H (6,718) 9,697 2,979
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss FEEAFA/ (BI%) 705 (1,219) (514)
Exchange adjustments Tk - @) )
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——E+=F=1+—-H (6,013) 8,474 2,461
At 1 January 2013 W=—Z-=5-F—H (6,013) 8,474 2,461
Credited to profit or loss EERAFA 447 733 1,180
At 31 December 2013 W=Z-=f+-B=+-8 (5,566) 9,207 3,641
Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance REEEERRRBRNERE -
sheet:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Net deferred tax assets EIERIBEEFE 3,770 2,618
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIEEEFE (129) (157)
3,641 2,461
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23.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(m), the Group and the Company have not
recognised deferred tax assets of $14,859,000 (2012:
$14,059,000) and $11,874,000 (2012: $11,125,000) in
respect of cumulative tax losses of $90,057,000 (2012:
$85,027,000) and $71,963,000 (2012: $67,422,000),
respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. At
31 December 2013, the tax losses do not expire under
the current tax legislation. At 31 December 2012, tax
losses of $349,000 would expire in the coming five
years.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted
to $4,626,000 (2012: $3,010,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $463,000 (2012: $301,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of this subsidiary
and it has been determined that it is probable that
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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B.IRGEEERERNAEHR(8)

(c) RERNWELEREEE

BEMEIMAENSTEER ARNEA
BEER AR REB SRR LR TR
NEEEBENRRERBTRF  WAE
B & A a| & 5t 5 590,057,000 7T ( =
T— 4 : 85,027,000 %) K 71,963,000
(=T — % :67,422,0007T ) 0 R 5+
i 7% B 18 7 32 14,859,000 (= F — =
% :14,059,0007C ) & 11,874,0007T(=
T — — 4 111,125,000 7T) IR LR B E
E-RN_TE—=F+-"A=+—8  Hi%
EEBERITREEFATESRRD - ¥
T+ -A=+—8 BEE#E
349,000 TR K A EF A E W °

(d) RERWEER TSRS

R-_F—=F+=-A=+—H8 6E@—
MBRARRD RBFNNEGREERAR
4,626,0007(= T — = £ : 3,010,000
TL) c ARARRIEFHIZH B A RMKE
BUR - ez T B A BAE AT R SRR K AT Bk
2o RAF At WEREHRZE
R B8 B 7| R FE B B0 1 1B 1 58 463,000 7T
(ZZ——% : 301,000 7C)IEEFIBE

& e



24.Capital and reserves

(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing

24, RAR #ES
(a) BERARDBOHEE

AEBRA R S AR BY)EB RS

balances of each component of the Group’s BREOHEEANGEEREHE - ARAE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated 1l 7 25 48 X BB 10 IO 2N 4 R B 9] I B AR A A9
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes EHABRAINNOT :
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company
NG
Share Share Contributed ~ Accumulated
capital premium surplus losses Total
B R EE BEazs RitER @t
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $°000
r r r i r
Balance at 1 January 2012 RZB-ZF-A-ANEH 99,737 531,769 62,635 (172,486) 521,655
Changes in equity for 2012: E-CEREEE:
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEEZE Wz
the year Fok - - - (3,415) (3,415)
Dividend approved in respect of BB L EETH AR
the previous year BE - - - (60,939) (60,939)
Balance at 31 December 2012 W=-F-—£+-B=1+-AFK
and 1 January 2013 “E--F-A-ANEtH 99,737 531,769 62,635 (236,840) 457,301
Changes in equity for 2013: E-CEREEE:
Total comprehensive income for ~ AFEZE NG
the year Fok - - - (2,279) (2,279)
Share premium reduction R R EEE - (531,769) 531,769 - -
Dividend approved in respect of ~ BELEECHEMN
the previous year RE - - - (74,802) (74,802)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-Z-=F+-fA=1+-H
Rt 99,737 - 504,404 (313,921) 380,220
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24.Capital and reserves (continued) 2. BRARFEES(E)
(b) Share capital (b) B
2013 2012
Number of Number of
shares shares
BREE B EHE
’000 $°000 ’000 $°000
Fi Fr T Fr
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 SREEO1TH
each TER 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHAR :
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c)
(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account
is governed by sections 150 and 157 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

On 13 May 2013, a special resolution was passed
in a special general meeting approving the
reduction of the share premium of the Company
by HK$531,769,000 (“Share Premium Reduction”)
and the transfer of the credit arising from the
Share Premium Reduction to other distributable
reserves.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013

BB ABERRTI T ROKS
I HERADAREAR EBHE—RR
BR—F - A EBREAAAOHBE
BT &9 EERS . -

HESHHEERAR

(i) BRi7&E
BHEBEREMNERSARR A
ERMAFE150R157TIER B R E
—NN—FLRRVEFARR -

R-T—=FRA+=H BREX
BFRASLEEB—BRIAZER
PAHE /BB AR 2 R R 5 % (B B
531,769,000 7t ([ B 17 & B EIR 1) &
BRGEEBEEHREENERSREZH
ftb Al F 7 IR S o



24. BAREHES ()

(c) RETNMEER AR @)
(i) —Ri#E

24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i) General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries of 10% of their net profit
after tax, based on the subsidiary’s PRC statutory
financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up
capital of the respective subsidiary.

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001,
the Company became the holding company of
the Group. The excess of the consolidated net
assets represented by the shares acquired over
the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation
in 2001 was transferred to contributed surplus.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is available for distribution to
shareholders.

On 13 May 2013, a special resolution was passed
in a special general meeting approving the
reduction of the share premium of the Company
by HK$531,769,000 and the transfer of the credit
arising from the Share Premium Reduction to other
distributable reserves.

(iv) Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity transaction
and the premium was recognised directly in
shareholders’ equity.

AEBERBENE R RHARENE
DA BURE MR MR AT AR
BANE10% BN —MREEH -

— MR AT AR ] RET B 1Ak
ERERANBARNESRRA -

(iii) E# & 6
BE-ZT-—FHEEEHA - KA
KEAEBNZERAR -G EEF
BERAEFMEROBEHARRBR-ZZ
T-FRBEEMATEEIRMEITH
BhEE ZSEAKRCBATHR
%o REBEBFEE-NN\—F(REE)
B BERBBRATKETRER -

R-—FT—=FRA+=H BREX
BFRAASLEEB - BRIRAZER
(D7 = [ = s NN T e o = o
531,769,000 7t & % B% {7 4 (B Bl &k 22
EREREREHEMA THIRERS

(iv) B 7 fE
REEBR-_ZZLFH-BRHB
AR)EE] —HEWE - bA1,211,000 7T
B (B W BB H 7 M B 2 §] KM-Vision
Limited FI&RH) 8% RO IR - FTE £ )&
{8 5605,000 7T ° LLEEIMNEE Th AR
mRXHIE  BREEERREERTR
HER o
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24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative

net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
debt securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(e).

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(r).

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $280,483,000 (2012:
$Nil). After the balance sheet date, the Directors
proposed a final dividend of 7.94 cents per
ordinary share (2012: 7.50 cents per share),
amounting to $79,191,000 (2012: $74,802,000)
(note 11(a)). The final dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group did not
have any bank borrowings. The Group had bank
deposits and cash balance as at 31 December 2013
amounting to $359,066,000 (2012: $409,791,000).
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24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

25.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate
and currency risks arising from the normal course of its
business. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables and listed
debt securities. Impairment losses have been made
for loans to and amounts due from an investee which
are determined to be impaired (notes 5 and 16).
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Investments made are normally only in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except
where entered into for long term strategic purposes.
Given the high credit standing of the counterparties,
management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations, except for
those on which impairment losses have been made.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers of
merchandising business either pay on delivery or
are generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

24. BAREHES ()
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25.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any licensed bank to fail
to meet its obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable are set out in note 19.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board of
Directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of
its subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries
are required to obtain the Company’s approval for
activities such as investment of surplus cash, raising
of loans and settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond
certain limits.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which are
required to be repaid within one year or on demand
amounted to $49,757,000 (2012: $62,337,000) and
$224,040,000 (2012: $213,705,000) respectively.

The Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months
of the balance sheet date amounted to $126,411,000
(2012: $1383,159,000).

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013

B.HKEREEREBRIENAAREE

(#8)

(a)

(b)

FERR @)
RIOFEFRRTEE - REFHINEET
BHEENHBRAEE A FFERT - ER
HEENERR  BEEEYL FRBEME
BRTTEBEEABITESRR

AEBYERHEEIFAAESAEERAL
FH RS &R ER -

{a]

AEBREEREEINEERRNARSE
PRKIFE 19 R E—FTHRE -

RBESRR
AKEETERRZERAEEASNR

SER  AEESEFUREESANRS
FX - HERCEEAHEERNETEE
KE - RIRERALRREEGHIE - &
SENBRAETHERHERPESER
NEREESRMNEeRELREXIES
REEDNSRANALESEE  MEH
REHORBDESRE -

ARBNEBENERENBLARANRE R
B —RME » ARAIRKNERRIZAERLNA
ReBMIERE  SKRERNEHBBE
TERNEERRHZERZEHRE AR A
o

REER  AEERARARIHEITES R
BE(AR—FAIRERKEER) DA
49,757,000 (=& — — & : 62,337,000
JL ) % 224,040,00070(= T — = F:
213,705,000 7T) °

ARABMETESRMEEFEHRTE R
HEHB T -_EARNERZ)AE126,411,000
T(ZF— 4 : 133,159,000 7T) °



25.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
It is the Group’s policy to monitor market conditions
closely and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy
on interest rate risk management in the light of the
prevailing market condition.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s interest bearing
assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

B.FKEREEREBRIENAAREE

(#8)

(c)

AERER
AEENBRABRNERMHARR - AR
KEIRUFREBOSERE - REER
BEROTSRT - EHBRTEMNERR
EIRRRE o

(i) FIEH#X
TERFHVNAEBRAQNBREEBR
ATREERABBENOFER

2013 2012
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BRERE ERFRIER
% $’000 % $°000
Bk Fr Btk T
The Group AEME
Fixed rate assets: ElEFIFEZE -
Other financial assets HithemEE
— available-for-sale — AHEE
debt securities BEHS 4.0 78,072 3.9 81,296
Bank deposits (including $R{TFR (BIEE
pledged deposits) EREFER) 2.1 312,373 1.9 367,631
390,445 448,927
Variable rate assets: FEFEEE -
Cash at bank BITHEM 0.1 55,849 0.2 31,148
The Company VNN
Fixed rate assets: EEFIEZE -
Bank deposits (including $R{ITER(EHEE
pledged deposits) KHER) 1.3 158,893 1.1 218,351
Variable rate assets: FEFEEE
Cash at bank RITFER 0.0 1,256 0.1 3,349
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25.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately $519,000 (2012: increased/
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and
decreased/increased the Group’s accumulated
losses by approximately $281,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would have
decreased/increased by approximately $434,000
(2012: $1,216,000) in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit/
loss after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the balance
sheet date. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at
the balance sheet date, the impact on the Group’s
profit/loss after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as for 2012.
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B.FKEREEREBRIENAAREE

(#8)

(d) E% kg

25.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

TRHANAEERARREAERAREY
REBENINEESBUIENEERBE
MR &8 B RAARENEEER

Exposure to foreign currencies P B f
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B AE
2013 2012
UsD RMB USD RMB
EH AR ESH AR
$’°000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Fx Fx Frx T
The Group rEF
Other financial assets HittSmEE 78,072 25,611 81,296 —
Pledged bank deposits BIRFRITER 59,000 1,200 59,000 —
Bank deposits and cash RITEARES 80,643 13,071 149,807 13,565
217,715 39,882 290,103 13,565
The Company Y|
Pledged bank deposits BIRFRITER 59,000 1,200 59,000 —
Bank deposits and cash RITFERREAES 74,284 13,071 134,570 13,565
133,284 14,271 193,570 13,565
In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk P REBEmEUAAREGEER

arising from inter-company receivables and payables
denominated in Renminbi which is not the functional
currency of either the lender or the borrower.
The net inter-company receivables amounted to
RMB122,836,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB123,050,000).

The following table indicates how an appreciation in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar at the balance
sheet date would have affected the Group’s results for
the year and other components of equity.

BRI RN E Y )5 BR &) 1 7] e I AR
ALEMNERFEENEERR - N_-F
—ZF+-A=1+—8 " ArMEKZE
FEA A AR 122,836,000 L (—F——
F: AR¥123,050,0007T) °

TRETREERARE L BEOIEY
AEENRNFEEENE RS EKE D

=214
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B.FKEREEREBRIENAAREE

25.Financial risk management and fair values of

144

financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(#8)

(d) &%k @)

2013 2012

Increase in

Increase in profit for
Increase profit for Effect on Increase the year Effect on
in foreign the year other in foreign and decrease other
exchange and retained components exchange in accumulated components
rate profits of equity rate losses of equity

KEE
EKEE HHf BREMR HHM
Ex BAR BEAR Ex ZitEE R
21 REBFE M BonKE 120 "D BANTE
$000 $000 $000 $'000
T T T T

The Group A%

Renminbi AR 3% 5,917 - 3% 5,006 -

A weakening in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar by
the same percentage at the balance sheet date would
have had an equal but opposite effect on the Group’s
results for the year.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance
sheet date, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower, and that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the linked rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the Group entities’ results after tax and equity
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation
purposes. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2012.
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25.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
currencies.

Fair values measurement

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following note details the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at
the balance sheet date on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e |evel 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

e level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

e | evel 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

At 31 December 2013, the only financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value were
available-for-sale debt securities of $78,072,000
(2012: $81,296,000) (see note 16). Recurring fair
value measurements of these instruments are
categorised into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy
described above.
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25.Financial risk management and fair values of 25.B K EREEREMIANAAEE

financial instruments (continued) (%)
(e) Fair values measurement (continued) (e) AAEEE (&)
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at (ii) EHZERAEEF RN E /T AL
other than fair value REE
All financial instruments carried at cost or FTB R A KA RN EmT
amortised cost are carried at amounts not BERBER T —=FRF-_F—=F
materially different from their fair values as at 31 T A=+—HHNAABEREZTK
December 2013 and 2012 except that amounts MEEIIR  HEK BAAEER
due from/to ultimate holding company, fellow RABHREERAT - BRINBA
subsidiaries and subsidiaries of the Group and the ARMBARKEAEER 2EK
Company are unsecured, interest-free and have EETEERE ERUERNR BE
no fixed repayment terms. Given these terms it is HArRBEEETK -
not meaningful to disclose their fair values.
(f) Estimation of fair values (f) RAEENMEE
Fair values of listed available-for-sale debt securities FHAHHEBRRESNAABEDIRE
are based on quoted market prices at the balance NEEBFHRAMSHRE(LRIDEAR S
sheet date without any deduction for transaction PXAR)ERE o
costs.
26.Commitments 26. 7HiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
At 31 December 2013, the Group had the following RZE—=F+=-A=+—H XYL
capital commitments in relation to the purchase AR BHREAELHRENEBABER T
of fixed assets not provided for in the financial BEMEREAENT :
statements:
2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr T
Contracted for BEIEHNE - =
Authorised but not contracted for EHEBNRETENE 111,006 111,006
111,006 111,006
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26.Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property and equipment
are payable as follows:

26. RIE(E)
(b) BEHBERE

RIT-—=F+-A=+t—H AEER
BEEYMEREREBONINAZHELEHER
NHRRZEHSABELT

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

Fr T

Within 1 year —FR® 6,581 9,852
After 1 year but within 5 years —ER®ERFR 3,373 6,382
9,954 16,234

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not include
any contingent rentals.

Other commitments

Certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media sales
management services for BUS-TV business, (ii)
to conduct media sales agency and management
business on selected bus shelters, (iii) to solicit
advertising business in respect of the interior and
exterior panels of buses operated by The Kowloon
Motor Bus Company (19383) Limited (“KMB”) and
Long Win Bus Company Limited (“Long Win”), (iv) to
solicit advertising business on billboards owned by the
government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region have been granted to the Group, and (v) to
solicit advertising business on billboards and other
advertising spaces owned by other independent
third parties, and the respective licences will expire
in periods ranging from 2014 to 2017. Under such
licences, the Group has committed to pay licence fees
or royalty fees at a pre-determined percentage of the
net advertising rental received, subject to a guaranteed
minimum amount. The future minimum guaranteed
licence fees and royalty fees are payable as follows:

(c)

AEERBELKEHEHRAMELRE - B
ST REP—ZRF  WAREHEDS
MERREN HETEREMKAHR

o

ki

Hb &
AEEREEET () SELTEREBRER
BEEETERY  ((AFEELRES
RURBHERERETERR ()R
EEL(-AZZ)BR2ATAED R
EEELARQR(EE]MEENE
THERABLRESINBESLETES
X% (VWREBEABRBNTRERTEAR N
EERETESER  RVREMBL
F-NBANBESREEMESETE
EEBHEE  SNEFERNTF-F
—HFEE-Z-LFHEEE - REZF
BT ARBECARERIEEESHES
AENALETA N LBNEFELERN
g HEAXRERBESEMR - RRKE
REFHAERENZFNZDOT

2013 2012
$’°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Within 1 year —FR 148,108 150,097
After 1 year but within 5 years —FZERFRA 173,179 307,456
321,287 457,553

2013F#H  BWABERBRAE

147



148

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBER  GRBWTE)

27.Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $25,000. Contributions
to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in employee pension schemes organised
by the local governments under which the Company’s
subsidiaries are governed. Details of the schemes of the
Group are as follows:

27. EEEKEF

AEBEREBERE(RHERBSFTEEI)R
WIRB ECER R G ) 58 5 0 18 8 R L9
MABeFE((RESFE]) - BRESE
BREBRENREMNTE  HBULEERBEE
2o RipRESE BEXTRAEREBYAE
HHEEREREEBRASLNETR  MEASE
B U A B EBR 525,000 7T © 5t &l 6t 50 T B

BB

BREFBEESR  AEE28HHEAQAN
BRANM T BFERNEERKEE -
AEBOFEFHBWT

Administrator Beneficiary Contribution rate (Note)
A 3R (H3E)

2013 2012
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 20% 20%

ERTHERBRESEEF O

Note:

Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and 8% of
a pre-determined amount.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013
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28.Material related party transactions

2. EREATHNEARS
BRATBHREREMBNARENR S REH

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the S REERFREUTEBREATNRS :

following related party transactions during the year:

2013 2012
Note $’°000 $°000
B = Fr T
Licence and service fees for conducting E+ZIREHK
BUS-TV business SRR RIS & (i) (20,197) (19,720)
Licence and royalty fees paid for the T EREHWRES
right to sell advertising space on E SRR
transit vehicle shelters BHHREFNE (ii) (20,169) (18,634)
Licence fee for the right to solicit NEEERERADESL
advertising business at advertising ETEEEEIER
space on transit vehicle interiors HISETE (iif) (12,167) (12,000)
Licence fee for the right to solicit REEBERBESIMNDESN
advertising business at advertising EITEEEBWRET
space on transit vehicle exteriors SOk (iv) (60,500) (60,000)
Rental expenses HEER (v) (8,260) (8,242)
Management fee expenses EEEHEX (vi) (22,614) (20,991)
Service fee paid for logistic function BB EERIS 2T RIS & (vii) (490) (490)
Key management personnel remuneration T2 EE A S & (viii) (11,750) (10,609)

Notes: Bif&E -

() Licence and service fees were paid to a subsidiary of the (i) %?‘F&%i%%i?‘%ﬁ@ﬂﬁfﬁ%@é@EiJ:E’UEi
Company’s ultimate holding company, Transport International ﬁg%ﬁ%%%@ﬁﬁEi\%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁiﬁ%lﬁ
Holdings Limited (“TIH") for conducting BUS-TV advertising @ETE@W%N%HQ@ETQ@W% ZhR B R A A ([#
business on buses operated by KMB and fitted with the BUS- a VB ARINER - KER - REEEHD
TV broadcasting system. The amount payable by the Group X 1A /34,360,000 7L(= F — = 4 : 5,960,000
at the year end amounted to $4,360,000 (2012: $5,960,000). JT) °

(i) Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising (ii) ﬁgﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂg%?ﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%@fﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁm
spaces on certain transit vehicle shelters owned by a E?%@iﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬁ% ° R4F
subsidiary of TIH. The amount payable to a subsidiary of TIH K R T BE N B A R # IR R 1,692,000 7T
at the year end amounted to $1,692,000 (2012: $1,326,000). (ZT—=% :1,326,0007T) °

(i) Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting (i) #5EFE R IR B SLE AT EE R B L M 2 R N A R
advertising business in respect of the interior panels and %ﬁ K E it 5 iR A9 R 1L—L\E5§TTJ%%¥5‘§§ %
other interior spaces inside the compartments of buses %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’&iﬂ’q%ﬁ% c RER - AKRMEHAEEH
operated by KMB. The amount receivable by the Group H) T8 SR8 B W 3RIR & 1,106,000 T(=ZF — =
for advance payments made at the year end amounted to % :23,0007T) °
$1,106,000 (2012: $23,000).

(iv) Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for marketing, (iv) %ﬁffg’ii?ﬁﬁi?ﬂ_i’%fﬁﬁﬁ; Ef\&%ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁéﬂﬁ
displaying and maintaining advertisements at the exterior ﬁﬁ%@gﬂEiﬁ@i%%ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁi‘ﬁiﬁﬁji@W%
panels of the bodies of buses operated by KMB. The amount NG gﬁﬁ e RER - REEFE FH AN K
receivable by the Group for advance payments made at the A H FE IR ,ﬁiﬁ #$26,227,0007C(=F — —F :
year end amounted to $26,227,000 (2012: $10,809,000). 10,809,000 7T ) °

(v)

Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing
properties, audio and visual equipment, computer equipment
and software system, and furniture and fixtures. The amount
receivable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$246,000 (2012: $Nil).

ARERMEYE  FERE  ERIMBRAM
o GRARKESAHANBARNXNEES
e MER - A% B R KA KA /246,000 T
(ZF—=F:F) -
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28.Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vij Management fee was paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited
(“JCDecaux Cityscape”), a fellow subsidiary of a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, for
the provision of media sales agency services in relation to
bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux Cityscape at
the year end amounted to $3,824,000 (2012: $3,612,000).

(vii) The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the
logistic function provided to the Group in relation to the bus
shelters under the media sales business. The amount due to
JCDecaux Cityscape at the year end amounted to $41,000
(2012: $41,000).

(vii) Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

28. HAEANTHNEARS (8)
GERNC))

(vi)

(vii)

AEBRAREEEE LT RESTHEHERER
BHEesREgERAR(EaRE ) IHER
£ ZRBRADBMER B IEEBRB RO R
MEBAR - RER BN TESREMNRES
3,824,000T (=& — % : 3,612,0007T) °

AEERESESRNASEREEBEELREES
EREEXBHE THNEIRERNESER X
NR%EE RER BN FTEERENZKES
41,000 T(ZE——4% : 41,0007T) °

(vii) ERERA BN E (RIEME 8 RESN FA

REABEENHALMEIOMKEXNTETRS
HEEENRE)WT

2013 2012

$’°000 $°000

Fr T

Short-term employee benefits EHESER 11,675 10,540
Post-employment benefits BEE 2 1R 75 69
11,750 10,609

(ix) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected
transactions

The related party transactions in respect of licence fees
and rental expenses payable to subsidiaries of TIH and
management fee payable to JCDecaux Cityscape above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided on pages 42 to 48 of the annual report.

The related party transaction in respect of service fee paid
for logistic function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape above
constitutes continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, it is exempt from
the disclosure requirements in chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

29.Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2013, the Directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be KMB Resources Limited and TIH respectively.
KMB Resources Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands while TIH is incorporated in Bermuda and listed in
Hong Kong. TIH produces financial statements available
for public use.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013

(i)

BRBERZHN EmRAERE

LHEMEMTHANBARNSHERLHEES
B URENTFESREENEEENEBEAL
REBRBERFAFEFERF(EER T
MAIE14AE) - LTHARBE14AZERENHE
HNFRFL4255F 488 °

LR BEERRERGENS FTRERANREEN
EHRBEALRIBRBERERS(EHZR LW
RAFE14AE) - A HEHRRET EWARR
FVATHWERE

2. EERRAERAR
RZZE—=%F+-_A=+—"HB EFZA
AEEBMNEES R A MEEERRQR D5
A KMB Resources Limited & & # - KMB
Resources Limited A 3 B & & B &+ i 5K

K

MBEAARBREEMRILEREE L

M FARHMBERRARLIRALHE -



30.Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The Company reviews
annually the useful life of an asset. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed at each balance sheet date
to identify indications that they may be impaired. Such
indications include physical damage of a fixed asset
and a decrease in the revenue derived from a fixed
asset. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the fixed asset is estimated. The
recoverable amount of a fixed asset is based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on reasonable assumptions that
represent management’s best estimate of the range
of economic benefits from the asset over its remaining
useful life.

Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale equity
interest

In considering the impairment losses that might
be required for the Group’s unlisted available-for-
sale equity interest carried at cost, the investment is
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined as the difference between the carrying
amount of the unlisted available-for-sale equity interest
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Estimates
of future cash flows from such equity interest require
significant judgement. Impairment losses for equity
interest carried at cost are not reversed.

30. &5t 1h &t R A Ef
AN TEEMTHEZRIR -

(a)

(b)

ne

Bl & E IR R E G Al E B A B 4%
EEENE - ARRIBFRAEENA £
REH - MBEBTELEEAES - AIX
KRBT ERAXSELRAER -

Bl =& ERE
AEERBEAERFEETEERE DR
BEFR - ZENRBEEATCEENELR
BREEBEEMEENRERD - EFE
ERMHFRETR  AEBEKGEETE
EER P YO 20 EE o B E B E A A I E 2R
BREMEBEMNE  ZSFHAEEREEEY
ZEBEENKBENSIELREGLFTAENG
BRE YRHETAERFHETRER
E1RA -

FEMmAHE L ERENRE

HEERAKERARANGIRR A IE LAl 4 b
ERERLRERRER  AEENEES
ERBEMZKE  UREREFEEME
BHRBERR - MEETAABERE Al
EMBEE R &% 3F EH Al i & R
HEEGFRARREERERTRTEE
KRB REENRTHSE KK
WRINERETE - BARENRKRS
MEFERIBERHE o AT IR /Y A2
R EEE A A M o
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30.Accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(d) Impairment of accounts receivable and loans to

and amounts due from investee

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the debtors and investee to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates of future
cash flows on the ageing of the accounts receivable
balance and debtors’ and investee’s credit-worthiness.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by
management when assessing the credit-worthiness
of each individual customer and the investee and the
collectibility of each accounts receivable balance. Any
increase or decrease in impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts would affect the Group’s results in
future years.

31.Non-adjusting post balance sheet events

(@)

On 9 January 2014, AdSociety Advertising Agency
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement to sell
and transfer its entire equity interest in an investee
to an independent third party at RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to $38,370,000) and a creditor’s rights
transfer agreement to sell and assign its entire interest
in the loans to and amount due from the investee to
another independent third party at RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to $25,611,000). Up to the date of these
financial statements, an aggregate of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to $25,611,000) has been received from an
independent third party in connection with the transfer
of the loans to and amount due from investee.

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
11(a).

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013

30. &5t h aT K Al ()

(d) BURRBEUARBERELTDERRER

WIRERRAINE
AEBRERARKIRE R RENEER
F XTI 5 B ET B B AR R R
R EEE - REBREEBERREHRD
fREe RIERARIKIREARINEER IR
fhErRRBERE - EEERFHZ B
BEPRBERERANEERNRERKER
RAERTROERFEL —ERZENH
B o RIZBR IR (E IES 18 B (E (] 32 R0 19 AT BE &7
ERNEBERKRFENES

N.ERABEERRSE

(a)

R-ZZT—WF—ANB ARANEE
MEARAEEHESARA AR
B EW - AR AR 30,000,000 7T
(#8517 38,370,000 ) (A — BB E =
FHEREZER —FEREEARNEY
Mt ARFTUBRERGZE - ARA
R ¥ 20,000,000 7t (48 & 7 25,611,000
ﬁ)ﬂ%—%ﬁjéﬁ:ﬁﬂj%&%%ﬁ%
EREZRELNRNERRRIEBNZE I
o HEMSE ﬁwﬁp&%aﬁﬁ - BRtEERE
WL E R BINER I FBWER — 2B L
%EE%#AE%ZQMWD%HKHwK
25,611,0007T) °

%%E/\\ FEHREZRERBRS - #E—
AERHEE 11(a) ;R -



32.Possible impact of amendments, new NR.ECEMAERBZE-ZTE—=F1+=A4

standards and interpretations issued but =+—HBLEFEERERHELET
not yet effective for the year ended HERARREURENANTE

31 December 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BEAMBRETERS FESFAMAE
the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a new ERBZERBEE_TE—=F+=-A=+—
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended BIEFERARERNERT L —EHED - M
31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted in AUBRRY BRAZERT LR - B
these financial statements. These include the following ATgR2AKEHRNER -

which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTFIESRZ%&

BHBRNETTHREXR

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014

(BRETERDEI2RMNIBE] » [Hii2HEEREHEE ] —E—mMFE—-HF—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments Not yet determined

(EBUBIRELERNFEIN  [2HT A/ i REE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REBEFFHZEFEITREAEAABNY
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be Z. Haihll "EERARMWNZZEBY
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded AEENKREEERMBRABKEATE

that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant B ] BE E K o
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEMBEHRE
For the years ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BB T BT T BET T
RESULTS E3
Turnover R 462,002 421,154 371,491 325,231 196,361
Other revenue and other net E A A K HAl
income Wz F 58 26,212 22,019 25,837 31,213 26,778
Total revenue WA 488,214 443,173 397,328 356,444 223,139
Profit from operations KEBE A 98,882 96,490 79,193 61,114 36,842
Reversal of impairment loss/ Htt&mEE
(impairment loss) on other  HEFEEE,
financial assets (REsE) 25,611 - (109,606) (110,000) (9,801)
Loss on disposal of HEKE AR
subsidiaries 18 - - (468) - -
Gain on deemed disposal of R{EH &8 N T EH
partial interest in associate AU E - - - — 177
Share of loss of associate ~ FE{HELE A F&1E - = = = (4,544)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBAEF,/ (F5E) 124,493 96,490 (30,881) (48,886) 20,674
Income tax Frigst (15,871) (16,991) (12,863) (8,269) (4,454)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERAN/(FE) 108,622 79,499 (43,744) (57,155) 18,220
Attributable to: P
Equity shareholders of the ~ AQFRR
Company 104,853 74,817 (48,637) (61,641) 14,016
Non-controlling interests FIERER 3,769 4,682 4,893 4,486 4,204
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ &EERF,/ (F5HE) 108,622 79,499 (43,744) (57,155) 18,220

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013



At 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT T BET T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERAE
Fixed assets BEEE 48,938 49,122 64,672 8,406 13,407
Media assets HEEE - - - - 372
Non-current prepayments FREFENRE 12,484 3,741 1,667 44,268 19,160
Other non-current financial ~ Efti3ERE SR
assets BE 8,124 81,296 80,872 219,140 231,664
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 3,770 2,618 3,060 4,067 3,802
Net current assets REBEEFE 611,265 519,494 491,540 459,873 541,335
Total assets less current EEABRRD
liabilities afE 684,581 656,271 641,811 735,754 809,740
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE (129) (157) 81) (86) (573)
Net Assets BEEFE 684,452 656,114 641,730 735,668 809,167
Capital and reserves BERFHES
Share capital [N 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves #ES 575,010 546,441 530,739 628,455 703,240
Total equity attributable to ~ ZAQAFRKRE
equity shareholders of the ~ fE{LRER
Company HzE 674,747 646,178 630,476 728,192 802,977
Non-controlling interests FIERER 9,705 9,936 11,254 7,476 6,190
Total Equity ERAE 684,452 656,114 641,730 735,668 809,167
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
DNEEH

Board of Directors EE€

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak - Chairman
PRAVBE T KA T - F/F
GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

Ms Winnie NG - Deputy Chairman
haeat - 5l£/E
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CCMILT, MHKIoD

Mr YUNG Wing Chung - Deputy Chairman
BXKBIE - BIFE

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*

IR E LR FaaL
BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKAM, FBCS, CITP,

FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
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GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT,
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Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

fAEX 4

MA (Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

*

Independent Non-Executive Director
BYUFHTEFE

Company Secretary AR #WE
Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung

XiEt
ACA, CPA

Registrars R E= M E

Hong Kong &%

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712 — 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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BBERRANERI8IHEFFRL7IE1712-1716F
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street, Hamilton HM 11,
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Closure of Register of Members
EEREROBFETFE

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement

to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting:
13 May 2014 to 15 May 2014 (both dates inclusive)

AEERREFRREFASYNE LRENENTEE
—E-NFRAAT=RAE_T-MFRATHEA
(BHEEEMA)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement

to the proposed final dividend:
21 May 2014 to 22 May 2014 (both dates inclusive)

ARERERRERESZRBRENEFNMEGE
—ENFRAZ+—HEZZT—WFRA=1+=H
(BiEERMA)

Annual General Meeting RRAFAE®

Date & Time 15 May 2014, 11:30 a.m.

Venue . Novotel Century Hong Kong, Plaza 4,
Lower Lobby, 238 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

HHA K B D ZE-FERA+TARA
FFtH—RK=1+9

L 2h © BREFINEEE238 5t
AR BTG A E(KE
AREEEE

Dividends &

Interim . Nil

Final (Proposed) : HK7.94 cents per share

AR ER 3

R (% SRERET. 041l
Registered Office XM= E

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office &= &
9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEHXAERENR

Telephone EaE: (852) 2746 5200
Facsimile & : (852) 2744 7854
http://www.roadshow.com.hk/

Auditors #Z i Em

KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong
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